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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Byford
International Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have
been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded
on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

BEBBMEXZMARNA ([BX
Frl) AIEAR (TRIRR]) 2% &

BIERDARFRERERR 2 A RRM
—fELhmzmE  LEERIRRETZ
REIHBEBEGMNLCE - TNEAFRR
RHEGEA o o - FERIER EH 2R F)
AREREFEEERZERARRLEER
ZOERBERMAZRER - BEREE
ETHIREZFARIZELERR - WJE
REBBEBAFEBRTEHERER
T BIRRABR SRR KA RE
TEIRREERBEXRREEREMER
REHE -

HERBIER LM ARG 2HEEE - £al
EMEBEZESAEEEREREETL
EHRBRHZIMGRE AT E - BAIE
REBZRAFTTRESESNABEZ
g o

BIERBEBERZEERTERBEBRHR
FTig{E RSB TIE - ETHAR—
MBALEEBREERETIEMNKAM
At - BEREEEZFEE  BEEE
= Al ¥ % 48 35 www.hkgem.com -+ A BR
BEIZER EMBEITAZEIER -

B ABECABTHTEE HH
BT BT EREBE - o
FHER T T B A AR &5 .2 2 B2 (]
BB 10 A B L K FEZ FAE M 5/
HZ T 18K ASET A Z AT o

A& e E R BB BB IR E 5
ETARA([BIZR LA R EIRH
FRBEEBERERAA([KXRF)) 2E
Bl e ARAIEEFE([EF]) HAXHEH
BEHHERIRESAELHEE K&
FUEIEL AR BEMEER  BKE
HRA RS (1) RSB A M
EEXFTELEERR T AER
g ABEEIEERAMER @ H(E
AR EFTBAAEMRAFARE K (3)
EEXRBEAREZER  TEFR
BFZBEIBITIES LA FEEZ
HERBRRBIKIE



Contentsé

2 Corporate Information

UNGIEC ¥

4 Financial Highlights

MBHE

5 Chairman’s Statement

FRWmE

8 Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RREON

14 Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress

*BEEHEREREREE 2R

1% Use of Proceeds from IPO

BRARAERMSHIERSE

16 Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EERaREREGE

21 Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ% Ela #ﬁ/‘t

40 Report of the Directors

ExgRs

58 Report of the Auditors

1% 25 B i 5

Audited Financial Statements

KEZ B mEK

60 Consolidated Income Statement

e W &

61 Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEEBRER

63 Balance Sheet

EEAER

65 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

TEEmEER

66 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

;vT = Iﬁimbii‘%

68 Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3R 3% Bf 5

139 Summary of the Published Results and of the Assets
and Liabilities of the Group for the
Last Five Financial Years/Period

REERBIMABAMBEE HESHBEEER
EENRBEHE




Cormporate Information
AFER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Wang Lu Yen (Chairman)
Norman Janelle (Chief Executive Officer)
Chai Sing Hong

(Alternate Director: Choong Khuat Leok)
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob

Non-Executive Director
Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chow Chi Kiong

Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

Liew Swee Yean, Ivan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Choong Khuat Leok

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Choong Khuat Leok

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chow Chi Kiong (Chairman of the committee)
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

Liew Swee Yean, Ivan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Choong Khuat Leok
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob

CONTINUING SPONSOR

Cazenove Asia Limited

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7

Exg

HITES
FHEE(ER)
Norman Janelle (17 4 %)
EER

(BREESF : HE®)
Win B

FHITES
Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim

BYFBTES
Chow Chi Kiong
2FE

23 IR

NEAME
R

SEBERTE

EEEX{E
im B

EREES
Chow Chi Kiong(ZE & £ &)
2|35 R

REAR
R

m B

FERBA
R MERAG

BB Em
BBk B R E A



REGISTERED OFFICE
Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 401-409

Jardine House

1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street, George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Standard Registrars Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Southern Bank Berhad
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.donaldbyford.com

STOCK CODE
8272

G Y

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

HMNEERBTEIEEXMBE

BE

FIR

R E S 19
B KE
401-409%

ROOBERBFARE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street, George Town
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

ERERODECRBFIE

ZETEELZERA A
BBET

2/ KEBEHE28%

& EEF L2618

FEARET
Southern Bank Berhad
BITIRT (BA) BR A A

A4t

www.donaldbyford.com

I 1 1K 5%
8272

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 % #k




—inancial Hignlignts

[==z]
151 2
12 months 16 months 12 months
ended ended ended
30 April 30 April 31 December
2006 2005 2003
B=E HE H=
—EEREF —ETRF —TT=F
mMAE=+H WMA=+H +-—HA=+—8H
IE+={@A IE+NEA F+=@A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FHET FETT
Results E¥
Turnover S 29,346 63,147 51,689
EBITDA (Note) BRAE - BIE - TE
N 2 &H
(P 5E) (336) 400 10,658
(Loss)/profit for F8R (BB
the year/period i (600) (2,960) 8,072
At 30 April At 30 April At 31 December
2006 2005 2003
RZEEARE N-_ETRF R-ZZTEE=F
MA=+H WMA=+H +ZRA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET FETT
Assets and Liabilities EEHERE
Total assets BEMRE 32,353 42,359 49,946
Total liabilities BERE 4,606 15,006 18,937
Net assets BEFE 27,747 27,353 31,009

Note: EBITDA represents operating (loss)/profit before depreciation and

amortisation.
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Charman’s statement

EEHE

To our shareholders

| am pleased to report that we continue to make significant
progress in the restructuring of Byford International Limited (the
“Company” or “Byford”) in order to be better positioned to
successfully exploit your Company’s assets for the long-term
benefit of the shareholders and its employees. In this regard, we
completed the sale of the underperforming distribution business
in Malaysia, hired a team of experienced licensing managers,
signed agreements whereupon we submitted applications to
transfer Byford trademark in the categories of socks and
footwear and also to transfer the registered Byford Chinese
characters’ trademark, both in the region of the People’s
Republic of China, to the Company. | am confident that these

actions will provide a strong foundation for future growth.
Business review

The licensing business continues to show progress and
recorded a 23.3% growth in royalty income for the 12 months
ended 30 April 2006 (the “Reported Period”) when compared
with the 12-month pro-rata period ended 30 April 2005. This
increase, while aided by the inclusion of Malaysia as a third-
party licensee, reflects expansion of the Byford brand in
Greater China and in Indonesia. Royalty income improvement

also came from the launch of the Baby-Q trademark in China.

The Singapore unit had to cope with a change in the retalil
marketing programs of several key customers which had the
effect of reducing turnover by 5.6% when compared with the 12-
month pro-rata period ended 30 April 2005. Despite this decline,
the Byford brand continues its leadership position as one of the

top three innerwear products in the Singapore market.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Prospects and outlook

We are encouraged by the Byford brand’s strength in its key
markets and believe that there are significant opportunities to
expand the product range beyond its core innerwear
assortment. Our strategy is to develop the Byford property into
a lifestyle brand. Our licensing organisation will accomplish this
by working with experienced partners that understand the
market and are qualified to represent the Byford brand; plus,
have the product development and distribution competencies
that are compatible with our strategic objectives. The extent of
our progress will largely be contingent upon our existing
licensees buying-in to this new direction. In addition, we will
continue to test market the Baby-Q brand by expanding
distribution of the existing product range to new markets and
support it with the appropriate marketing activities.

The successful implementation of these strategies will
undoubtedly produce sustainable long-term growth which will
result in improved earnings for the Company. We will also
continue with our relentless pursuit to reduce expenses from
the business. This will be accomplished by exploiting synergies
within the Roly family, utilising technologies to reduce costs
and improve information and in general by being prudent with
what we do — from expenses to asset management. The net
result is that we are optimistic that the Company will produce
meaningful profits for its shareholders in the future and that it

has the necessary resources to do so.

| would like to thank my board (“Board”) of directors who have
unselfishly provided guidance, advice and support to me and
to the Company. Of particular note, | would like to mention Mr.

Liu Tsun Kie and acknowledge his many significant

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7
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contributions to the Company of which the sale of the
Malaysian distribution business is but just one such example.
He has regrettably decided to resign from the Board as his
new assignment within the Roly family (the Company’s ultimate
holding Company and its subsidiaries) precludes him from
active participation as a Board member. | would also like to
welcome Mr. Norman Janelle who, on 1 May 2006, was
appointed an executive director of the Company, the chief
executive officer and a member of the executive committee of
the Board. Mr. Janelle has over 35 years of experience with
major multinational corporations and we look forward to
benefiting from his knowledge. We could not accomplish what
we have nor travel the path of the future without our
employees who are not only competent and dedicated but are
committed to our growth objectives. To each of them | am

truly grateful.

Wang Lu Yen

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2006
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\anagement Discussion
and Analysis

BIRE A AT

Business review

During the prior reporting period, Byford changed its financial
year end date to 30 April from 31 December so as to facilitate
consolidation of its financial performance with its ultimate
holding company, Roly International Holdings Ltd. (“Roly”). As
such, the audited accounts for the prior period are for the 16
months ended 30 April 2005 (the “Prior Period”). In the year
ended 30 April 2006, the Group’s results were impacted by
the disposal of the Malaysian distribution business in July
2005. As such, the turnover of the Group declined by 53.5%
compared with the Prior Period. Loss before taxation stood at
HK$436,000 as compared to a loss before taxation of
HK$2,924,000 for the Prior Period. This positive variance was
aided by the one-off non-recurring exceptional gain of
HK$824,000 arising from the disposal of the Malaysian

distribution business.
Turnover

The Group’s turnover reduced by 53.5% for the Reported
Period to HK$29,346,000 from HK$63,147,000 for the

Prior Period.

Turnover for by 38.0% or
HK$18,014,000 when compared to the 12-month pro-rata
Prior Period of HK$47,360,000. This reduction in turnover was

the Reported Period fell

a result of the disposal of the Company’s wholly-owned
Byford Marketing (M) Sdn. Bhd.
in July 2005 as disclosed

Malaysian subsidiary,
(“BMM”),
shareholders dated 8 July 2005.

in a circular to

As a result of the change in the Company’s financial year end
becoming effective for the Prior Period, and unless explicitly
stated otherwise, all percentages stated below compare the
12 months ended 30 April 2006 with the 16 months ended 30
April 2005.
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The Group’s turnover is derived from two business segments,
namely, sales of goods comprising men’s innerwear, socks
and apparel and licensing of the Group’s Byford and Baby-Q

trademarks.
Sales of goods
During the Reported Period, the Group’s revenue from the

sales of goods was HK$23,358,000, 58.8%
compared to HK$56,671,000 for the Prior Period. The

lower as

decrease in revenue was mainly due to the inclusion of only
three months sales of BMM from May 2005 until the disposal
of BMM in July 2005, a reduction in re-orders from integrated
global sourcing (“IGS”) sales, and a drop in sales due to

cancellation of special sales events in Singapore.

Sales of goods from geographical segments for Malaysia
declined by 92.8% to HK$1,457,000 in the Reported Period
compared to the
HK$20,285,000 as a result of the disposal of BMM.

12-month pro-rata Prior Period of

Turnover from sales of goods to the Singapore market declined
by 0.8% as compared to the 12-month pro-rata Prior Period
due to a fewer number of promotion events. During the
Reported Period, IGS sale to the Dubai market decreased by
6.1% as compared to the 12-month pro-rata Prior Period due
to a cancellation of the Dubai Sales Festival and there was a

delay in new product offerings leading to a slower re-order level.
Licensing
Royalty income from licensing in the Reported Period was

HK$5,988,000
HK$6,476,000. During the Reported Period, a provision for

compared to the Prior Period of
impairment of trade receivables of HK$563,000 was made in
respect of licensing income due from a licensee. On a 12-

month pro-rata Prior Period comparison, licensing income
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EREAERE SR

during the Reported Period increased by HK$1,131,000 or
23.3% over 2005. This increase was a result of greater
contributions from existing licensees in Greater China and
Indonesia plus the continuing growth of the Baby-Q brand in

China and the inclusion of Malaysia as a third-party licensee.

Operating loss

Loss from operations for
HK$875,000 compared to an operating loss of HK$1,949,000

for the Prior Period.

the Reported Period was

The movement in the operating loss was due to the following

factors:

° overall gross profit margin increased from 44.4% to
52.9% when compared to the 12-month pro-rata Prior
Period which was mainly due to the fact that total royalty
income for the Reported Period

HK$1,131,000 or 23.3% from HK$4,857,000. Gross

profit margin from sales of goods in Singapore, excluding

increased by

royalty income from licensing, remained stable;

° selling and distribution costs (“S&D Costs”)

percentage of turnover remained stable at 16.7% in the

as a

Reported Period compared to 14.8% in the Prior Period.
In light of the disposal of BMM and reduced economies
of scale, S&D Costs have effectively been maintained at

an efficient level;

° general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
turnover increased to 41.1% in the Reported Period
when compared to 33.7% in the Prior Period. This
increase is a result of the costs arising from expansion of
the new licensing team from September 2005 as well as

a reduction in turnover from the disposal of BMM

10 Byford International Limited ® &= E ¥ 4 R A &
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compared to the Prior Period. In absolute terms,
administrative expenses decreased by HK$3,906,000
when compared to the 12-month pro-rata Prior Period.
Significant fluctuations include the effects of the
reduction of BMM’s cost in the Prior Period of
HK$2,411,000 and the following:

° increase in licensing team costs of HK$1,212,000;

° reduction in Directors’ emoluments of
HK$1,215,000 as a result of changing the status of
an executive director to a consultant and
reallocation of director’s fees for a non-executive

director to staff costs;

. rental saving of HK$234,000;

° reduction in amortisation and depreciation of
HK$1,035,000 as effective on 1 May 2005, no
further amortisation of trademark is required under

generally accepted accounting policy;

° reduction in professional fees of HK$782,000
compared to the Prior Period as this included costs
relating to the general offer in July 2004;

. reduction in travelling costs of HK$253,000;

° reduction in design and marketing fees of
HK$122,000 as a result of a revision to the agreed

fee; and

° reduction in exchange loss of HK$627,000.

TR EER A T 3,906,000/ T o 18
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EREAERE SR

Net loss

Loss before tax was HK$436,000 for the Reported Period
compared to a loss before tax of HK$2,924,000 for the Prior
Period. Included in loss before tax for the Reported Period is
an exceptional gain on disposal of BMM of HK$824,000.
Finance costs continued to fall by 60.5% to HK$385,000 from
HK$975,000 for the Prior Period due to the repayment of a
term loan during the Reported Period. Net loss stood at
HK$600,000 for the Reported Period as compared to a loss of
HK$2,960,000 for the Prior Period.

Liquidity and financial resources

For the Reported Period, the Group utilised HK$2,777,000 for its
operations through an increase in inventories of HK$751,000, a
decrease in trade receivables of HK$1,357,000, an increase in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of HK$234,000, a
decrease in trade creditors of HK$1,363,000, a decrease in
accruals and other payables of HK$1,521,000 and an increase in
security deposit of HK$260,000.

Other major movements in the condensed consolidated cash
flow statement between 30 April 2005 and 30 April 2006
includes operating loss before movement in working capital of
HK$302,000, gain on disposal of BMM of HK$824,000, gain
on disposal of plant and equipment of HK$162,000, net
income tax paid of HK$94,000, exchange loss of HK$324,000
and interest received of HK$137,000.

The Group continues to maintain a healthy financial position
with cash and bank balances of HK$3,761,000 as at 30 April
2006.

The Group’s current ratio improved to 3.0 as at 30 April 2006

compared to 1.6 as at 30 April 2005 mainly as a result of the

repayment of bank borrowings. The Group’s gearing ratio
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similarly improved to 1.6% from 27.9%. The gearing ratio is
computed by dividing bank borrowings and finance leases

over total equity.

Human resources

At 30 April 2006, the Group employed a total of 40 employees
(2005: 89). The Group is committed to attracting, training and
retaining its people and offers competitive remuneration
packages with bonuses and employee share options based on

individual performance, experience and industry norms.

Prospects and outlook

In the fiscal year 2007, several new Byford product launches
from licenses that have already been signed will come on
steam. These launches will not only enhance the brand profile
and expand its geographical presence but will add incremental

revenues for the foreseeable future.

The major development program for the Byford brand remains
to be the line extension into a full men’s wear product range.
Discussions are currently ongoing to achieve this objective in
our main markets. The successful conclusion of these
discussions will help to significantly expand the Byford brand
image and, correspondingly, its public appeal plus will further

augment royalty income.

Plans are also being explored to expand the Byford brand’s
core men’s innerwear product range in North America and a
test market for the Baby-Q brand is currently underway in the
Singapore market. All of these activities are part of a brand
building exercise designed to enhance the value of the
Group’s brands and, coupled with the continuing cost control

program, ensure a long-term profitable business.
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Comparison of Business Opjectives
with Actual Business Frogress

XGEEZREE

Business objectives

REBEREE 2R

Details of the Group’s business objectives are set out in the paragraph

headed “Statement of Business Objectives”

under the section headed “Future plans and prospects”

(“Business Objectives”)
in the

prospectus of the Company dated 23 June 2003. Save as disclosed

above, the Company had no other investment plans as at 30 April

2006.

Comparison between business objectives and actual

business progress

Business Objectives

Brand building

Developing new license

territories

Developing new distribution
markets

Integrated global sourcing
(HlGS!!)

Customer relationship
management (“CRM”")

Actual Progress as at 30 April 2006

The Group is actively pursuing new product
line extensions with several existing licensees
and, as well, with some potential new
licensees.

The Group has signed a replacement
licensee in the US and is currently reviewing

opportunities in Canada.

The Group is in discussions with distributors
who are evaluating the potential for Byford
brand of socks and underwear. The Group
has also test launched the Baby-Q brand in
the Singapore market.

The Group is working with IGS to develop
new packaging that will enhance the product
presence at retail.

The Company is reviewing its CRM
requirements in view of its change in focus to
brand management, wholesale distribution

and related royalty income.
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Use of Proceeds from PO
BEXAFAERMENRIERR

Use of proceeds from IPO BXRAHEERFENREAR

Actual usage
for the

year ended
30 April 2006
BZE
—EEARE
mMA=+H
LFEEZ
BERER
HK$°000
FHET

Brand building vy 825
Developing new A ERRED R

license territories 604
Developing new distribution MR D HET 5

markets 195

Integrated global sourcing FAEERRE 081

1,905
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Directors’ and Senior
\eanagement's Profile

EENEREEEBE

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 52, has been an executive director
and the chairman of the Company since 2004. Mr. Wang is a
co-founder, an executive director and the chairman of Roly, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and the ultimate holding company of the Company,
and is presently responsible for the Roly group’s corporate
and strategic planning. He has also been the chairman and an
executive director of Linmark Group Limited (“Linmark”), a
subsidiary of Roly, since the shares of Linmark were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2002.

Mr. Wang has over 25 years of experience in the trading and

distribution  business. He was awarded Outstanding
Businessman by Taiwan’s Ministry of Economic Affairs in 1985.
Mr. Wang is a member of the China Overseas Friendship
Association, the deputy director general of the Retails and
Supplies Committee of China General Chamber of Commerce,
a vice-chairman of China Association for Middle and Small
Commercial Enterprises, the vice-chairman of China Committee
of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a member of
Advisory Committee  of

Garment Hong Kong Trade

Development Council, a member of the Hong Kong Policy
Research Institute Limited, a founder and a director of the
Taiwan Design Center, the chairman of the Soochow
Management Academic Foundation of Soochow University and
the honorary chairman of Taiwan Business Association (Hong
Kong) Limited. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from Soochow University, Taiwan. Mr. Wang
received the Directors of the Year Awards 2005 hosted by The

Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Norman Janelle, aged 65, has been the executive
director and chief executive officer of the Group since 1 May

2006. Mr. Janelle has over 35 years of experience with major

16  Byford International Limited ® &= E ¥ 4R 2 &

ITHREELE 525 BE_TENFRECEAR
BIZATESERER - TRERZE (XK

RGMBRRABETZRABRAREZE&
i“% BAm) 2KREIMA AITEERERE
REE2EEEIELELRERE - HITAE2
WZW%’“EM“‘EEE‘M@QE(W‘%‘?J)Z%
MR _ET_FEBIMEIRETARLEZ
’Aﬁi%&%ﬂﬁ%% °

ITREEESMRHEEBRBEA _THER
B MR- NWN\DFEREZEENRFR/EDL
BA - ERERTEBIMESESE  PEH
XBMeeTEHERNEXZEGRZRER 7
B ?ﬁ%m%Tﬁ%EEHAE E% HETE
E/]EF

F=R

4}1119>>®H

= afl =
E= N E/ Eﬁ(%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ : é?’%%ﬂ%f?&?r
®
EF&?&E/ m/%IFﬁTﬁJ %éﬁif FrhRAER
CEEEELEN - TRLED
RETBE %ﬂ@ﬁ%’fﬁ’ﬂ_igﬁifﬁf%ﬁ%

Norman Janelle %4 ' 655 0 B -2 T N F
AA—HRBRHAHRTES R ASEITEHRAE -
Janele T EEF EBEBCEXBEER =T RHFER ©



multinational corporations. In September 2005, Mr. Janelle

joined Roly to oversee the licensing division of Roly’s
subsidiaries including the Group. Before joining Roly, Mr.
Janelle spent 25 years as a senior executive with Philip Morris
International (“PMI”) and was based, for various periods of
time, in Asia and Europe. He was responsible for the strategic
direction of the business and was accountable for the
performance of PMI in several markets within each region. He
subsequently joined The Walt Disney Company with his most
recent position as head of Walt Disney Consumer Products
(Asia Pacific) Limited where he was responsible for the
licensing and retail businesses throughout the Asia Pacific
region. Mr. Janelle holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
He is also a Chartered
Chartered

from the University of Montreal.

Accountant of the Canadian Institute of

Accountants.

Mr. Chai Sing Hong, aged 39, has been an executive director
of the Company since 2003. Mr. Chai is responsible for the
licensing business of the Group in Malaysia. He has more than
12 years of experience in operating regional apparel
manufacturing and marketing businesses in Malaysia and

Singapore.

Mr. Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob, aged 48, has been an executive
director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Lin is also an
executive director of Roly and the chairman and legal
representative of Midway Enterprises (Guang Zhou) Ltd., a
subsidiary of Roly in China. Mr. Lin oversees the corporate
planning of the licensing and distribution business of the Roly
group. Mr. Lin has over 15 years of experience in the trading
and distribution industry. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from Soochow University, Taiwan and
a Master of Business Administration degree from the National
Taiwan University, Taiwan. Mr. Lin worked as a deputy
manager in the credit division of a Taiwanese bank prior to

joining the Roly group in 1987.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
EEhaREREMRE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim, aged 27, has been a
non-executive director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Wira
has a Master of Arts degree and an honours degree from
Wolfson College at Cambridge University, the United Kingdom.
He brings with him a wide business network in Asia-Pacific
and has been a consultant to a major infrastructure and public
utility group in Malaysia. He is currently involved in property
development and investment. Mr. Wira endeavours to assist
the Company in sourcing, procuring and extending its
business network by means of suitable business, financial or

strategic alliances.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Kiong, aged 59, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2003. Mr. Chow
has been a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and New York State Society of Certified
Public Accountants since 1983. He has more than 30 years of
experience in investment banking, banking, capital markets,
private banking operations, fund management and business
liquidations. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration and an Associate degree in Applied Science,
both from the Pace University, New York, the United States of
America. He is also an Associate Member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Mr. Chow has worked as a financial
controller in the banking and investment banking industry in

Hong Kong for six years.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 40, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2003. Mr. Yue is
an executive director of Winkas Company Limited, a financial
and management consulting services company, Monitronic
Limited and Monitronix Limited, both engaged in the trading of
telecommunication Yue

products. Mr. is currently an
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independent non-executive director of Sungreen International
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM. Mr.
Yue served as an independent non-executive director of
Wealthmark International (Holdings) Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
during the period from January 2005 to June 2005. In
addition, Mr. Yue had worked in several managerial positions
in Dao Heng Securities Limited including compliance and
finance between 1998 and 2002, and also worked at the
regulation division of the Stock Exchange in 1998. Between
1993 and 1997, Mr. Yue was engaged in auditing business in
an international accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yue holds a
Bachelor’'s degree of Science in Accounting from the Upper
lowa University and a diploma of Technology in Financial
Management and Accounting from the British Columbia
Institute of Technology. Mr. Yue is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Colorado Society of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yue is
also a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute holding a
Specialist Certificate in Corporate Finance and a Practising
Certificate in Corporate Finance.

Mr. Liew Swee Yean, lvan, aged 42, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 28
March 2006. He has over 18 years of experience in accounting
and corporate finance. Mr. Liew currently acts as a director of
business development of eBroker Systems Limited (“eBroker”)
which is a leading financial engineering company and
technology provider of global trading solutions for the financial
industry in the Asia Pacific region. Before joining eBroker, he
mainly worked for a few listed companies on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and private companies as the financial
controller. Mr. Liew holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration (Executive) from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants as well as the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
EEhaREREMRE

Senior Management

Mr. Choong Khuat Leok, aged 44, has been an alternate
director to Mr. Chai Sing Hong, an executive director of the
Company, since 2004. Mr. Choong joined the Group in 2003
as a non-executive director until 2004 and is presently the
chief financial officer, company secretary and qualified
accountant of the Company. Mr. Choong also acts as an
authorised representative of the Company to the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Choong qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
the United Kingdom and retired as a partner of Deloitte in
2002. He brings with him over 18 years experience in the

corporate finance, assurance and advisory services lines.

Mr. Choong served as a member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants’ Auditing Standards Committee from 1993 to
1999 and is currently a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an associate
and practising member of the HKICPA, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and was an investment representative
under the Hong Kong Securities Ordinance from March 2001
to February 2003.

Mr. Choong is an accountancy graduate of the London
Guildhall University (formerly the City of London Business
School) with a post-graduate MBA degree awarded by the J.
L. Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University

and The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Ronnie Teo Loi Huat, aged 54, is the general manager of
Byford Marketing (S) Pte. Ltd. Mr. Teo joined the Group in 1975.
He has more than 30 years of experience in the regional textile
and apparel industry. Mr. Teo has vast experience in apparel
marketing and distribution in South-East Asia and was in
particular responsible for the successful setting-up of the Byford
business in Indonesia. His main responsibility is managing the

overall operations of Byford Marketing (S) Pte. Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices

appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
(“Code

Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance

the principles (“Principles”), code provisions
Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules
(“GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on

GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasize

an effective Board, sound internal controls, appropriate
independence policy, and transparency and accountability to

all shareholders.

The Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions
save for certain deviations from the Code Provisions, details of

which will be explained below.

The Company is planning to comply with the Code Provisions on
internal controls of the CG Code which are to be implemented for

accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2005.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the

Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors should make decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERMSE

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a
position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, all
members of the Board have full and timely access to all
relevant information and may take independent professional
advice if necessary.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer
and senior management to discharge its responsibilities.
Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of

corporate activities of the Group has been arranged.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance
of skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making.

with  four

The Board comprises eight directors in total,
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executive directors, one non-executive director and three EH @ — (U AFNTEER U ABIIEHT
independent non-executive directors as follows: EE AT
Name of Directors Positions EERE By
Wang Lu Yen Chairman and executive director TE TREERRITES
Norman Janelle Chief executive officer Norman Janelle THBHFHIITES
and executive director
Chai Sing Hong Executive director ficR=ChE HITES
(Alternate Director: (BEES
Choong Khuat Leok) R A%)
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob Executive director g B HITESR
Md. Wira Dani Bin Non-executive director Md. Wira Dani Bin FHITES
Abdul Daim Abdul Daim
Chow Chi Kiong Independent non-executive director Chow Chi Kiong BYEHITES
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken Independent non-executive director AEEE BN EHITES
Liew Swee Yean, Ivan Independent non-executive director 215 R BYIENITES
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The following changes of directorship have taken place during

the year ended 30 April 2006 and up to the date of this report:

1. Mr. Chong Tao Boon, Vincent resigned as independent
non-executive director with effect from 28 March 2006
whereas Mr. Liew Swee Yean, Ivan was appointed

independent non-executive director with effect from 28

March 2006.

2. Mr. Liu Tsun Kie resigned as executive director with
effect from 30 April 2006.

3. Mr. George Chen resigned as non-executive director with
effect from 30 April 2006. Following the resignation of
Mr. George Chen, Mr. King Jun Chih, Joseph ceased to
act as alternate director to Mr. George Chen.

4. Mr. Norman Janelle was appointed executive director

and chief executive officer with effect from 1 May 2006.

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules from time to time. None of the

members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing  appropriate

professional  qualifications, or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company considers all

independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board

composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
directors and assessing the independence of independent

non-executive directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of

the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skKills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process

when necessary.

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the appointment of
independent non-executive director and executive director and
re-election of directors were approved by unanimous consent

of the Board or by the Board at meetings.

Each of Mr. Wang Lu Yen and Mr. Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob, being
an executive director, is engaged by an appointment letter
without specific terms which can be terminated by giving one
month’s notice. Mr. Chai Sing Hong, an executive director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company, as
amended, with an initial term of three years from June 2003
and has continued thereafter until either party terminates the

service contract by not less than three months’ notice in
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writing. Mr. Norman Janelle, an executive director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company in relation to his
appointment as the chief executive officer of the licensing
division of the Company. The term of the said appointment has
continued until terminated by either party giving not less than
six months’ notice in writing. Mr. Janelle has also entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company as an executive
director of the Company which terms will continue until the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”). Mr. Janelle is
also entitled to terminate his appointment as an executive
director at any time by giving the Company at least one

month’s notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive
directors has been appointed for an initial term of two years
under a letter of appointment and such term has been

renewed for a further two years upon expiry, if applicable.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by

shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

The Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) provide that
one-third of the directors for the time being (save for the
chairman), or if their number is not three nor a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to one-third but not greater
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at each annual general
meeting and that any new director appointed by the Board
during the year shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting after appointment, and he/she shall be eligible

for re-election at that meeting.
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To conform with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code which
has been adopted by the Company, a special resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to amend
the Company’s Articles so that all directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years and any new
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general

meeting after appointment.

To be in line with the recent changes in the GEM Listing Rules,
a special resolution for the approval of the amendments to the
Company’s Articles to allow for removal of a director by an
ordinary resolution will also be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the

Company.

The Company’s circular to be dated on or about 25 July 2006
will contain detailed information of the directors standing for

re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
the GEM Listing Rules and

obligations under relevant

regulatory requirements.
There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing

briefing and professional development to directors whenever

necessary.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
During the year ended 30 April 2006, four regular Board

meetings were held.

The Board met six times during the year ended 30 April 2006
for approving the unaudited results for the 15 months ended
31 March 2005, the disposal of Byford Marketing (M) Sdn.
Bhd., the final results for the year ended 30 April 2005,
unaudited results for the three months ended 31 July 2005,
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 31 October
2005 and unaudited results for the nine months ended 31
January 2006. Almost a full board of directors attended each

meeting during the year under review.
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The individual attendance record of each director at the
meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit

Committee during the year ended 30 April 2006 is set out

below:

EEERNBE_ZZ
g9 g
EAZ%W‘JZZDT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/EBRY
Remuneration Audit

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
Ezns - FMzsg ENZEg
Wang Lu Yen T#E 5 1 N/A i A
Norman Janelle (Note 1) Norman Janelle (Ff{ 5% 1) N/A (Note 8) N/A i N/A T3

TR (Mxe)
Chai Sing Hong BEER 6 N/A T8 F 5
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob M E 6 N/A T A 2"
Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim 2 N/A i 1
Chow Chi Kiong Chow Chi Kiong 6 1 5
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REE 5 N/A i B 6
Liew Swee Yean, lvan (Note 2) Bim R (F15E2) N/A (Note 8) 1 N/A (Note 8)

@R (MEEe) @ (MEEe)
Choong Khuat Leok (Note 3) R (3E3) 6 1* 6"
Liu Tsun Kie (Note 4) %\J 1@ (HisE4) 6 N/A 7~ 5*
Chong Tao Boon, Vincent (Note 5) X (Ki5Es) 5 N/A 78 F 6
George Chen (Note 6) ﬁfﬁﬁlﬁ (Ft7E6) 4 N/A 78 FB N/A 78 F
King Jun Chih, Joseph (Note 7) 2Bz (MW7) 3 N/A 73 F N/A T3 F
Number of mestings held EERIGEAY 6 1 6
Notes: B 5T
1. Mr. Norman Janelle was appointed as executive director, chief

executive officer of the Group and a member of the executive

committee of the Board with effect from 1 May 2006.

2. Mr. Liew Swee Yean, Ilvan was appointed as independent non-
executive director, a member of the audit committee and the
chairman and member of the remuneration committee of the Board
with effect from 28 March 2006.
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3. Mr. Choong Khuat Leok is an alternate director to Mr. Chai Sing
Hong.

4. Mr. Liu Tsun Kie resigned as executive director and ceased to act
as member of the Executive Committee of the Board with effect
from 30 April 2006.

5. Mr. Chong Tao Boon, Vincent resigned as independent non-
executive director and ceased to act as member of the Audit
Committee and the chairman and member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 28 March 2006.

6. Mr. George Chen resigned as non-executive director with effect
from 30 April 2006.

7. Mr. King Jun Chih, Joseph ceased to be alternate director to Mr.
George Chen with effect from 30 April 2006 following the

resignation of Mr. George Chen.

8. Not applicable as the meetings were held prior to the date of

appointment of the director.

The directors are not members of the committee but have attended

the meetings by invitation.

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board
committees also circulate written resolutions for approval by

the relevant members of the Board and Board committees.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are

normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and

committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least three days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the

directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
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position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer, qualified
accountant and company secretary attend all regular Board
meetings and, when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting  matters,  statutory

compliance,  corporate

governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes and final versions are normally circulated to directors
for comment and records respectively, in both cases within a

reasonable time after each meeting.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,

which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or a director, will be considered and dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s
Articles also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of

their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 sets out that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Wang Lu Yen,
the chairman of the Group, also assumed the role of the chief
executive officer until the Group identified a suitable candidate
to take up the position as the Group’s chief executive officer.
Mr. Norman Janelle was appointed the chief executive officer

of the Group and executive director of the Company with
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effect from 1 May 2006. Following the appointment of Mr.
Norman Janelle, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer are segregated and they are not related to each other.
The respective responsibilities of the chairman and chief
executive officer are clearly defined and set out in writing,

details of which are stated below.

The chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the
Board,

and strategic planning and ensure proper proceedings of the

in particular, the Executive Committee on corporate

Board and the Executive Committee. He should ensure that
the Board and the Executive Committee works effectively and
discharge its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
Supported by the executive directors and the senior
management, the chief executive officer’s principal role is to
manage and operate the Group’s day-to-day business,
including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for

overseeing particular aspects of the

Company'’s affairs.

After the recent establishment of the Company’s website
Board

committees are now available on the corporate website for

www.donaldbyford.com, terms of reference of all

reference.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive
directors as follows:

Wang Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
Norman Janelle

Chai Sing Hong

Lin Jun Hsien, Jacob

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group to the Executive Committee
save to the extent that certain powers and authorities are
reserved to the Remuneration Committee or the full Board. The
powers and authorities reserved to the full Board include, but
are not limited to the following:

(@) matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a director;

(b) making decisions on whether or not to declare,

recommend or pay dividend;

(c) approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement
of the profits or losses in respect of annual results,
interim results or quarterly results and (i) the related
financial statements and/or accounts;

(d) approving any proposed change in the capital structure,
including any redemption of its securities listed on the
GEM Listing Rules;

(e) approving any decision to change the general character
or nature of the business of the Company;

(f)  approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction,
very substantial acquisition or disposal or connected
transaction within the meaning of Chapters 19 and 20
of the GEM Listing Rules;

(9) matters specifically set out in the GEM Listing Rules
which require an approval at a full board meeting; and
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(h) any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may
be imposed upon the Committee by the Board from

time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Remuneration Committee are

more particularly discussed below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-

executive directors as follows:

Chow Chi Kiong (chairman of the committee)
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
Liew Swee Yean, Ivan

(appointed as member on 28 March 2006)
Chong Tao Boon, Vincent

(ceased as member on 28 March 2006)

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former

partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and
quarterly results announcements and to provide advice and
comments thereon to the directors. The members meet
regularly with the internal auditor, external auditors and the
Company’s senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting and internal control
procedures. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
monitoring integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly reports, and to review significant financial

reporting judgements contained in them.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee held six

meetings to:

(@) review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, internal auditor or external auditors before

submission to the Board;

(b) review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make

recommendations to the Board on the appointment and

re-appointment of external auditors; and

(c) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and

risk management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions

of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company which took place during the year

under review.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 April
2006 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The

compensation committee),

Remuneration  Committee  (formerly  known as
comprises three members, the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors, as

follows:

Liew Swee Yean, Ivan
(appointed member and the chairman of the committee on
28 March 2006)

Chow Chi Kiong

Wang Lu Yen

Chong Tao Boon, Vincent
(ceased to act as member and the chairman of the
committee on 28 March 2006)

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
The

Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing

executive directors and the senior management.
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee
has been delegated with the powers and authorities to

implement the share option scheme of the Company.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and senior management and no directors

were involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

During the year under review, the Group’s Internal Audit
Department (“IAD”) was established to assist the management
to identify and manage current and emerging risks and
accomplish its corporate objectives and strategies by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, internal controls and
governance processes, and to assist the Audit Committee to
discharge their oversight responsibilities on a continuous basis.
The primary objective of IAD is to provide independent and
objective assurance to the Board and management as to the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management,
internal controls and corporate governance processes. It
reports directly to the Audit Committee and administratively to
the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the
Group.

During the vyear under review, IAD had conducted a risk
assessment which involved identification and analysis of risks
underlying the achievement of the Group’s objectives, including
risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment
and the Group’s business strategies, as a basis for determining
how such risks should be mitigated and managed and also as a
basis for formulating the internal audit plan (“IA Plan”) for the next
three financial years. The IA Plan which focuses on areas with
relatively higher perceived risks was approved by the Audit
Committee on 27 June 2006. The scope of work will be reviewed,
discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee and the
management at the beginning of each financial year. In addition, a
regular dialogue will be maintained with the Company’s external
auditors so that both are aware of the significant factors which may

affect their respective scopes of work.
IAD will submit regular internal audit reports to the Board,

Audit Committee, the chief executive officer and chief financial

officer of the Company on its findings, recommendations and
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agreed management actions. IAD will also closely follow up the
management’s actions and report to the Board and the Audit

Committee periodically.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Company continued to
adopt a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors,
and the directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard of dealings or otherwise in connection
with its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors throughout the year ended 30 April 2006.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no
less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written

Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory

requirements.
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The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30
April 2006.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Report of the Auditors” contained in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 30 April 2006 amounted to HK$313,000 and
HK$138,000 respectively. The non-audit services were relating
to the tax consultancy and professional services charges on

disposal of a subsidiary.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company follows the practices stated in the CG code
regarding shareholder rights and investor relations during the

year under review.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the
Company’s Articles. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the GEM website of the
Stock Exchange on the business day following the

shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board committee, are

available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual

directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the
Company also maintains a website at www.donaldbyford.com,
where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are

posted.
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The Directors present this report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2006.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 22 January 2003. Principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 31 to the

financial statements.

Change of financial year end date

With effect from 26 July 2004, Roly, a company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, has become the ultimate holding company of

the Company.

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed
from 31 December to 30 April to be co-terminous with that of
its ultimate holding company. The first set of audited accounts
issued after the change is for the 16 months ended 30 April
2005.

Results and appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2006 are

set out in the consolidated income statement on page 60.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 April 2006.

Plant and equipment
Details of movements in plant and equipment during the year

ended 30 April 2006 are set out in Note 14 to the financial

statements.
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Share capital

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 25

to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
30 April 2006 are set out in Note 26 to the financial

statements.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 30 April 2006 amounted to HK$953,000

(2005: HK$7,992,000)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 10 June 2003, among others, a share option
scheme namely, the Employee Share Option Scheme, was

adopted by the Company.

Summary of the Employee Share Option Scheme

(@) Purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme is to
provide the people and the parties working for the interests
of the Group with an opportunity to obtain an equity
interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the
interests of the Group and thereby providing them with an

incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.
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Participants of the Employee Share Option
Scheme

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme, the
Board may, at its discretion, invite (i) employees of the
Company (whether full-time or part-time) or any of its
subsidiaries or associated companies; (i) directors of the
Company (whether executive directors, non-executive
directors or independent non-executive directors) or
directors of any of the subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Group; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iv) resellers, distributors,
licensees, business collaborators, business consultants,
joint venture or business partners, technical, financial,
legal and other professional advisers engaged by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (v) substantial shareholders of each member
of the Group; (vi) associates of directors or substantial
shareholders of any member of the Group, the
subsidiaries or their associated companies; and (vii) the
trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) which includes any of the above-
mentioned persons, to take up options to subscribe for

shares of the Company.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Employee Share Option Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Employee Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 20,000,000 shares of the Company,
which represents 10% of the total number of the shares
of the Company in issue

immediately following
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(d)

(e)

(f)

completion of the Placing (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 23 June 2003). The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Employee Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of

the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme, the
total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
of the total

exceed 1% number of shares of the

Company in issue.

Time of exercise of options

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme, any
option may be exercised in accordance with its terms at
any time during a period of not more than ten years after
the date on which an offer of the option is made to a
grantee to be notified by the Board to each grantee and
there is no minimum period for which an option must be

held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance of option

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme,
HK$1.0 per offer of grant is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the option offer as

consideration for the grant.
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Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme, the
option must be accepted within 21 days from the date

on which an offer of option is made to a grantee.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per share under the Employee
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee

and shall be no less than the highest of:

() the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which an offer of
the option is made to a grantee, which must be a
Trading Day (as defined in the Employee Share
Option Scheme);

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five

consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding

the date on which an offer of the option is made to

a grantee; and

(i) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the Employee Share Option
Scheme

The Employee Share Option Scheme will remain valid for
a period of ten years commencing on 10 June 2003
(save that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the

operation of the Employee Share Option Scheme).
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The other principal terms of the Employee Share Option
Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 23 June 2003.

As at 30 April 2006, no share option has been granted
pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year ended 30 April
2006 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Lu Yen (Chairman)
Mr. Norman Janelle (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 May 2006)
Mr. Chai Sing Hong
(Alternate Director: Mr. Choong Khuat Leok)
Mr. Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob
Mr. Liu Tsun Kie
(resigned on 30 April 2006)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim

Mr. George Chen
(resigned on 30 April 2006)
(Alternate Director: Mr. King Jun Chih, Joseph)
(ceased to act on 30 April 2006)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Kiong

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

Mr. Liew Swee Yean, lvan
(appointed on 28 March 2006)

Mr. Chong Tao Boon, Vincent
(resigned on 28 March 2006)
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In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Articles, Mr.
Chow Chi Kiong will retire as Director by rotation at AGM and,

being eligible, offer himself for re-election as Director.

Mr. Norman Janelle and Mr. Liew Swee Yean, Ivan will retire as
Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM in accordance with article 86(3) of the

Articles.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within without

one year payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures

As at 30 April 2006, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were

recorded in the register required to be maintained by the
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Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise  ZHNIAR  siiREAIZER EHEBIZES.46157B 4
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to @R al MBS 2 RN AEWT ¢
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
(1) Long positions in the shares of the Company (1) RELXTARGBZHEER
Number Percentage
of issued of issued
Name of directors Capacity share held share capital
FEEERT ERITRE
EEHNE g4 BB EE El
Wang Lu Yen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 134,709,990 67.35%
F1%B THEE 2w (1)
Chai Sing Hong Beneficial owner 12,045,000 6.02%
EER EnEBA
Md. Wira Dani Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 2,500,000 1.25%
Bin Abdul Daim ZHEDEE z Ew (HEE2)
Notes: B aE -
1 As at 30 April 2006, Mr. Wang Lu Yen, Mrs. Wang Liaw Bin 1, RZZEZTRFNA=+H - ExExEE B
Bin, the wife of Mr. Wang Lu Yen, and Megastar Holdings W Z+ (FBEE2EF) & Megastar
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Wang Lu Yen, held Holdings Limited (£ #: B &A=& 2 A 7))
approximately 35.37% of the issued share capital of Roly. BBEZREBBEITIRAL35.37% - KRR Z&
Roly, the ultimate holding company of the Company, through BER AR Z2EE B Pacific Genius Group
Pacific Genius Group Limited (“PGGL”), held 134,709,990 Limited ([PGGL]) #§%5 134,709,9900 i 17
shares, representing approximately 67.35% of the issued AR R RIEBETIRANL67.35% At » RIE
share capital of the Company. Mr. Wang Lu Yen is thus BERKBAEGRY  FTHRBELIEREAEESSR
deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in all the MEETHAE 2 AR R 2 RS o
shares of the Company in which Roly is interested.
2 As at 30 April 2006, Skyline Agents Limited, a company 2. MRZZEZTRFMA="+H ' Skylne Agents

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, held 2,500,000

Limited (74 52 & Bz 22 ¥ B i M B SZ 2 22 A)) #5
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shares, representing 1.25% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company. It is legally and beneficially wholly-owned by
Mr. Md. Wira Dani Bin Abdul Daim. Accordingly, Mr. Md. Wira
Dani Bin Abdul Daim is deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Skyline Agents Limited of the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

2,500,000/ i 15+ (G AR F 2 EEEITR
781.25% ° Skyline Agents Limited B3 Md. Wira
Dani Bin Abdul Daim %t &&= R BH 2 EH
Ao Bt - REFFRBEED - Md. Wira
Dani Bin Abdul Daim 5t & # 1R & # A Skyline
Agents Limited FT #5248 2 A1 A& 0 2 #E 4 o

(2) Long positions in the shares of associated (2) REBZIEROZHFE
corporations
Number Percentage

Name of associated Name of of issued of issued
corporations Directors Capacity shares held share capital
L BRERT ERTRA
L EEpns &4 Rt &E AL
Roly (Note 1) Wang Lu Yen Beneficial owner 23,631,000 5.75%
28 (FE1) B> BEBEAA

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 350,000 0.09%

BBz s (M2

Interest of controlled 121,243,500 29.53%

corporation (Note 3)

REHEE s (F5E)
Roly Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob Beneficial owner 3,811,298 0.93%
28 i E ERBEAA
Linmark Group Limited Wang Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%

(“Linmark”) (Note 4)
HEEERRLF T%E BEBEAA
([#2]) (B 5E4)
Interest of controlled 437,720,000 65.64%

corporation (Note 5)
REHEE 2 5 (M3E5)
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Notes: B EE -

As at 30 April 2006, Roly, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, through PGGL, held 134,709,990 shares,
representing approximately 67.35% of the issued share

capital of the Company.

These shares in Roly were held by Mrs. Wang Liaw Bin Bin,
the wife of Mr. Wang Lu Yen.

These shares in Roly were held by Megastar Holdings
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is owned by
Mr. Wang Lu Yen. Mr. Wang Lu Yen is a director of Megastar
Holdings Limited.

As at 30 April 2006, Roly, the ultimate holding company of
Linmark, through RGS Holdings Limited, held 437,720,000
shares, representing approximately 65.64% of the issued

share capital of Linmark.

These shares in Linmark were held by RGS Holdings Limited,
the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Roly. As
at 30 April 2006, Mr. Wang Lu Yen, Mrs. Wang Liaw Bin Bin,
the wife of Mr. Wang Lu Yen, and Megastar Holdings Limited,
a company controlled by Mr. Wang Lu Yen, held
approximately 35.37% of the issued share capital of Roly. Mr.
Wang Lu Yen is thus deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be
interested in all the shares of Linmark in which Roly is

interested.

REZZEZERFEA=1TH - KRR ZHKRE
f% A A2 B S B PGGL #E 134,709,9900%
% AAFEEITIRALE7.35% °

ZEZEBROATIRBEEEZZEFEWH L
IHE -

#% % 2 EIR 1D B Megastar Holdings Limited
(EFHRBEEEBREE2IEBITRN)FE -
T #:[ % &£ B Megastar Holdings Limited 2
BF o

RZTZEANFMA=1H  MEZHFEIZER
ANRZEFEB RGS Holdings Limited 3 5
437,720,00008 BR 1 - (h AR ZE B BT IR AN 4Y
65.64% °

FZEMER D B RGS Holdings Limited (2 &
BEE2HBERITRAN)FE  -RZTZTAX
FOA=+H  THEXE - B L L
(F#B %L 4E2EF) & Megastar Holdings
Limited (F Bk EEH 2 R 8) HE2EE
BATIRANKI35.37% - At « IREFEFRPE
ol EREEEREREE B ETE
BRERD 2 -
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(3) Long positions in the underlying shares of (B8) REBLIEMEEROZEFR
associated corporations

Number of

underlying shares

Name of (as further comprised
associated and detailed in
corporation Name of Directors Capacity (a) and (b) below)
HERGHE
(T X (a) & (b)ER
HEBCEE A B EEnA 56 E—-SH RFM)
Roly Wang Lu Yen Beneficial owner 6,650,000
oy THE BEnEREA
Roly Wang Lu Yen Interest of spouse 87,500
a1 THE [k
Roly Wang Lu Yen Interest of controlled 30,310,875
corporation
oy T REEOEEZ #a
Roly Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob Beneficial owner 7,915,324
a1 i B BHEBA

50 Byford International Limited ® & & B &R A &



(a)  Rights to acquire shares of associated corporations (@) FEARBEER G EF
Pursuant to the share option scheme of Roly, the BIEARD R RKLZER AT 2 EH 2 B
ultimate holding company of the Company, certain HETE - ETESERERENRE
Directors were granted share options to subscribe ZE KRG  RFEBERER _ZEX
for shares of Roly, details of which as at 30 April FOMA=+RHZFHBOT

2006, were as follows:

Number of
share options

to subscribe

for shares Subscription
of Roly as at price per
Name of Directors Date of grant 30 April 2006  Exercise period share of Roly
us$

R-BEARF
mA=+H BR
AR B2 R 5 2EKR 5
EsnE BB H ZBREHE THEHE ZABE
e
Wang Lu Yen 23/08/2004 1,600,000  23/08/2005-22/08/2010 0.248

B

Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob 21/08/2001 1,200,000  21/08/2002-20/08/2009 0.100
I B 07/03/2002 2,000,000  07/03/2004-06/03/2010 0.130
22/11/2002 1,500,000  22/11/2003-21/11/2008 0.138
09/05/2003 1,500,000  09/05/2004-08/05/2009 0.151
30/03/2004 1,000,000  30/03/2005-29/03/2010 0.321
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(b)  Certain Directors were granted bonus warrants by

Roly on 29 April 2004 to subscribe for shares of

Roly, details of which as at 30 April 2006, were as

follows:

Number of
warrants

to subscribe

b) ETEZER_TTWHF
2R TANB IR

ZBAn - R RIEE

MAZ-+AhR
BUARBE 2B

RZETREF

mA=TAZEENT

for shares Subscription
of Roly as at price per
Name of Directors Capacity 30 April 2006  Exercise period share of Roly
(Note 1) S$
R-ZBBRE
mA=t+H =25
ARE2ER G 2ER 5
EEns =37 ZABREFHE fTHEHBH ZRBEE
(B &E1) N 7T
Wang Lu Yen Beneficial owner 5,060,000  29/04/2004-28/04/2009 0.75
T EnEAA
Wang Lu Yen Interest of spouse (Note 2) 87,500  29/04/2004-28/04/2009 0.75
T8 feBz s (MiE2)
Wang Lu Yen Interest of controlled 30,310,875  29/04/2004-28/04/2009 0.75
corporation (Note 3)
ITHE XEEhEREz R
(FiF5E3)
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob Beneficial owner 715,324 29/04/2004-28/04/2009 0.75

im B

EmBEEA

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7



Notes:

1 Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one

share of Roly.

2 These warrants in Roly were held by Mrs. Wang Liaw
Bin Bin, the wife of Mr. Wang Lu Yen.

3 These warrants in Roly were held by Megastar
Holdings Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which is owned by Mr. Wang Lu Yen. Mr. Wang Lu

Yen is a director of Megastar Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2006, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were recorded in the register required to be maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Persons with interests in the Company disclosed
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO

So far as the directors or chief executive of the Company are
aware, as at 30 April 2006, the persons or companies (not

being a director or chief executive of the Company) who had

GEE

1. SNRBREFETITHBEARB K2
B AD 2 R o

2. HERRRBEFAIGEELEZE
FEWWZLERHE -

3. ZE 2 B RMKEF B Megastar
Holdings Limited (E# B EHAH
2EEBITRA)FE - THEEEE
/& Megastar Holdings Limited 2 &
£

BREXHBEEIN R_ZETREFHO
B ARBEERESTHRASHER
SEEMBABEAE (ERLBHFMAERK
BB 2 ERIR D - AR RESFTEABLA
ARARBEES LA ROIFEINGAFEZE
Az EMERSORR  HRFAIER ED
HRAIES ABIRAFE AN R A N B R A 2 (Rl 2

SR o
REABNEERBEES RPEREIEXV
MEIFRATHEZEEZZAL
RAAAEERBRETRABMM  R-FT

NREMA=1THE > THALHRB(RRARES
HEBITHRABRRIN RAR B Mt AR 0
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interests or short positions (directly or indirectly) in the shares

h(EERER) BEERRALRRREBEES R

or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the HIE{EHIEICEEEFEZ EEMRELMA
register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the CRERBRE
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Long positions in the shares of the Company RAEATRGDZEFR
Number of Percentage
issued of issued
Name Capacity shares held share capital
FESEoN=Y- L) HEHTRAK
=g 514 g =] B
PGGL Beneficial owner (Note 1) 134,709,990 67.35%
EmmAaA (1)
Roly Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 134,709,990 67.35%
2R EHEE Z #w (M EE2)
Chan Wai Yee Interest of spouse (Note 3) 12,045,000 6.02%
Ao 48 2 #e % (T EE3)
Notes: Mk -
1 PGGL, incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is a wholly-owned 1. RABREXBESHMKILZ PGGL AZEZ2EE

subsidiary of Roly. Roly is a company incorporated in Bermuda, the
shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. Mr. Wang Lu Yen and his associates, are directly
and indirectly holding approximately 35.37% of issued share capital
of Roly. Accordingly, Roly and Mr. Wang Lu Yen are deemed to be
interested in all shares of the Company held by PGGL.

2 The shares are beneficially owned by PGGL, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Roly. Roly is deemed to be interested in all shares of
the Company held by PGGL.

3. Ms. Chan Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Chai Sing Hong. Ms. Chan
is deemed to be interested in Mr. Chai’s interest in shares in the
Company (as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying

shares and debentures” in this report).

54  Byford International Limited ® & & B &R A &
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2006, no person (not being
a director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken during the year
under review are provided under Note 30 to the financial
statements. Certain of these related party transactions fall under
the definition of a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction (as the case may be) but are not required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Contracts of significance between the Group
and controlling shareholder

Save as disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance between the Company, or
one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year under review.

Major customers and suppliers of the Group’s
customers

For the year ended 30 April 2006, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for approximately 58.37% of the Group’s total
sales and the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
80.03% of the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest
customer accounted for approximately 18.10% of the Group’s
total sales and the largest supplier accounted for approximately
31.61% of the Group’s total purchases.

BREXFIEEZEEIN R_ZEZNFNA=
B #BETHAL(KARESHESTHRAE
B A1) B AN A &) R% 17 3k A8 B8 A% ‘

3

EERRECLMAZEZIRE -
BEALXRS
REBFERNETHNREALIRSFHITENY
BHRMEI0 - ETREFHEALRZBERZE

RPEFEBERS (RFBERME) - HEF
RIFBIZER EHARANFE20E FUARE -

FEEEZERRRZENERELN

BRI TS AR M FESOPA B E SN - ARBHEL
e B /88 2 =) 458 B B 4% i BSCER 3 L AR ART B /B8 & )
RIMIEMEREGH o

EEEHN
ARAMEERBRRAENEERNEHK2E
BERTBAEONREEFEANTLHFLE -

ITEFEFRAGEEFEFZHER

BE_ZTTRFHA=TBILFE A&KED
REPIEAREE R IEERAG8.37% M AAM
FERAMAE N B AR ER480.03% ° 4N - &
REPIEAREEREERFRL18.10% ° MRAH
ERAIE AR R EARBRELN31.61%
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None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.

Competing interest

For the year ended 30 April 2006, the Directors are not aware
of any business or interest of the Directors, the management
shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which

any such person has or may have with the Group.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive rights
under the Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Material litigation

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries was involved in any

material litigation or arbitration during the year ended 30 April 2006.
Corporate governance
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the

Company are set out in the section of Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.
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Sponsor’s interest

On 9 September 2005,
agreement with Cazenove Asia Limited (“Cazenove”), whereby

the Company entered into an
Cazenove will receive a fee for acting as the Company’s
continuing sponsor for the period commencing on 1 July 2005
and expiring on 31 July 2006. As at 30 April 2006, none of
Cazenove, its directors, employees and their associates (as
defined in Note 3 to Rule 6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in the securities of the Company or any member of
the Group, or any right to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for the securities of the Company or any
member of the Group.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, auditors of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2003, resigned with
effect from 15 November 2004. At the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 6 December 2004, an
ordinary resolution was passed approving the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditors of the

Company in place of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2006 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment upon
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company to hold
office until conclusion of the next annual general meeting at a
fee to be agreed with the directors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board

Norman Janelle

Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2006
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—eport of the Auditors
BT R

PRICENVATERHOUSE( QOPERS

BORKES SRR

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF
BYFORD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Byford
International Limited (“the Company”) as of 30 April 2006, the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) as of 30 April 2006 and the
related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and
changes in equity for the year ended 30 April 2006. These
financial statements set out on pages 60 to 138 are the
Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

responsibility of the Company’s management.
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

HEEEBRERAT
(REASEESFMK L BRLE])
PRRRZEBEAHRS

AZHBMEEZERN 2 AEBRBREBERAA (&
RARZZETERFNA=FTHZEEAR
x EBRAOREMBAR(HABIEXE]) R
—EERNFNA-tTRAZGEAEERER U
RBEZTTAAFOA=THIEFEZHERBAL
ERER HGERERERRGEERERE

o BRABEEEAYHMNECOZF18E 2
P BHmEAEE  MBEMAEGESTRE LN
BWE  URBEZERERER - AREE
METWER—ZARE  AREWHEHEAM B
B RMBTERARENTREMEMA L
AREFEANARERERMT -

S

RIZER R IRBE R Z B EREITERIIE -
HEEABERMYBARE RETERIEN
EEMBTELMERRECHETMEKNE
R BZBEREUMES AN ERERM KR
TTHBERBREERE  TERETGHE
BEMEMZEHRARAEZ EE2MEE - U
R EMEBRR I ERER - NZBAAEE -
BNz BERIEEREMZERREHAEBECE

o o



In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial positions of the Company
and of the Group as of 30 April 2006, and of the Group’s
results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2006

N Y %WZWF%%EME&%A
TR BARH SER_ZTETREFMN
HE+E#M%Z%%#R k BEEEEZE
ZAHIEFRE 2 REXERRAESRE AR

N

o

B BREEN REFBRARRI 2 HERE
Z RS -

BORMKESTMERLH
K AHED

FE  —ZEERFXNA-T+LtH

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 3 59



] N/
e W
For the Year Ended 30 April 2006
HE_ZTR"EFNA=+HILLFE

Consolidated Income Statement

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEHF —_ETNF
EA—RZE —H—B=Z
—EEREF —ETREF
MmA=+H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHERT FHETT
Turnover EER 5 29,346 63,147
Cost of sales 81 & AR AR 8 (13,808) (35,099)
Gross profit EH 15,538 28,048
Other income H b Ug A 7 555 626
Selling and distribution costs HE Lo KA 8 (4,893) (9,315)
General and administrative — i RATER XX
expenses 8 (12,075) (21,308)
Operating loss K 1E (875) (1,949)
Gain on disposal of HE— R B
a subsidiary NEI Wl & 29 824 —
Finance costs A& A A 9 (385) (975)
Loss before income tax bR BT 15 B AT B 18 (436) (2,924)
Income tax expense e fifx 10 (164) (36)
Loss for the year/period, F/ 8RN
attributable to equity RAFIREREA
holders of the Company &b E5 18 (600) (2,960)
Dividend % 2 11 — _
Loss per share for loss F /8RN
attributable to equity holders RAFIREREA
of the Company during FEh F % B 1B
the year/period (HK cents) (B
— basic — EHAK 12 (0.3) (1.5)
— diluted — #E 12 (0.3) 1.5)

The notes on pages 68 to 138 are an integral part of these N FE68EF138E 2 M st AAMEHEK 2 — 5B
financial statements. 7 o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HAEEEARBEK

At 30 April 2006
RZZEZERNFNA=+H

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEEXRE RZZEZERF
B=+8H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5T FE T FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment 28 R B 14 681 1,562
Trademarks EEE 15 18,143 17,434
Deferred tax assets BEEFRIBE E 24 — 277
18,824 19,273
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 16 3,731 8,519
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 17 4,941 11,822
Prepayments, deposits and FERRE - - Zek
other receivables E fb e W sk I8 18 966 1,003
Amount due from related FE U R & A A
companies P QL] 30(c) 130 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEE 19 3,761 1,742
13,529 23,086
Total assets EEHE 32,353 42,359
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves ARATREFEA
attributable to equity EBEEARR
holders of the Company B
Share capital % 7 25 2,000 2,000
Reserves 1 26 25,747 25,353
Total equity EREE 27,747 27,353
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

MEEAERRER
At 30 April 2006
R-FEAFMA=+A

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-BEAREF R-ZEZTRHF
BA=+H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHERT FE T
LIABILITIES 8&
Non-current liabilities EFRBEE
Borrowings BE 22 — 622
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEE & 24 50 —
50 622
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables g 5 RN IR 20 1,875 3,849
Accruals and other payables JEst B A & 21 2,192 3,425
H b e R
Borrowings E= 22 438 7,006
Taxation payable B IE 51 104
4,556 14,384
Total liabilities BEHE 4,606 15,006
Total equity and liabilities EzkB8EREE 32,353 42,359
Net current assets RBEEFE 8,973 8,702
Total assets less current EEHRERRBEE
liabilities 27,797 27,975

Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob # & &
Director & %

Norman Janelle
Director %

FHNEBEF1B8AE M ERAM B HRE 2 —&F

financial statements. o

The notes on pages 68 to 138 are an integral part of these
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Balance Sheet
EEBER

At 30 April 2006
RZZEZERNFNA=+H

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEXREF R_ZEERF
ME=+H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FE& T F& T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment =g N R 14 45 57
Investment in a subsidiary R—RWBRARZIKE 31 1 1
46 58
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE- - ZEk
other receivables oAt JE Y TR IE 18 547 134
Amount due from subsidiaries Gl ENGIE 31 8,042 15,461
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeSE 19 949 639
9,538 16,234
Total assets EEHRE 9,584 16,292
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves ERATREFEA
attributable to equity EBEEARR
holders of the Company &
Share capital [N 25 2,000 2,000
Reserves 1 26 953 7,992
Total equity EREE 2,953 9,992
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Balance Sheet
EEBER

At 30 April 2006
R-FZRFOA=+H

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-BEREF RN_ETRHF
mMA=+H mA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FB T T T
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables JEETER K 21 566 880
H fth jE {308
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGIE 31 6,065 5,420
6,631 6,300
Total liabilities BEEHEE 6,631 6,300
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEGEHEE 9,584 16,292
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,907 9,934
Total assets less current EEHAER
liabilities RBEE 2,953 9,992
Norman Janelle Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob # i &
Director &% Director & %

The notes on pages 68 to 138 are an integral part of these N FE68EFH 1388 2 it AN EHE 2 — &6

financial statements. o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EHER

For the Year Ended 30 April 2006

BE_ZTZXEFNA=1+HILFE

1 May 1 January

2005 to 2004 to

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

—BFIF —_ZEEMEF

HTA—AZ% —A—Bz

—EEBARE —EThE

mMA=+8 mMA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FHET

Balance at beginning of the F PSS

year/period 27,353 31,009
Loss for the year/period FBHANER (600) (2,960)
Shareholder contribution R EE — 818
Currency translation differences E ¥ E X =% 994 486
Dividend paid SRS, — (2,000)
Balance at end of the year/period 4 Hi#& 45 8 27,747 27,353
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A AL B2
lz\/\éiﬁi//lbii‘%
For the Year Ended 30 April 2006
HE_ZTR"EFNA=+HILLFE

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEAHF —ZEEMEF
EA—RZE —RA—B=%
—EERE —TTRF
mMA=+H mMA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTET FHET
Cash flows from operating LR 2
activities BeRE
Cash (used in)/generated reaxn (M)
from operations Bzl e 27(a) (2,683) 3,767
Income tax paid B TSR (94) (208)
Net cash (used in)/generated R (i)
from operating activities T 2R&F5 (2,777) 3,559
Cash flows from investing KEEEZ
activities HeRE
Interest received Rl @RS 137 —
Purchase of plant and BERSEL
equipment B (255) (139)
Purchase of trademarks BEEEEZ — (2,891)
Proceeds from disposal of HE—RME QA
a subsidiary Z P S5R0A 29 11,793 —
Proceeds from disposal of o RS K AR
plant and equipment 2 FTiSEkIE 616 212
Net cash generated from/ REEREE
(used in) investing activities (FifE) 2B & 558 12,291 (2,814)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A AN =g =1
lz\/\éiﬁi//lbii‘%
For the Year Ended 30 April 2006
BHE_ZT"FNA=1+HILFE

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEAHEF —_ZEEMEF
HTA—BAZ% —HA—B=%
ZBERE —ZTTRF
mMA=+8 mMA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt ¥ FTEx FHET
Cash flows from financing MEES 2
activities RERE
New bank loans G IRITE R 4,500 2,500
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (9,443) (1,952)
Net increase in trust receipts B BUR R TT
bank loans ERIEIERE — 598
Repayments of finance BEMEHEDY
lease obligations O (452) (705)
Dividend paid SRR, — (2,000)
Interest paid 2 H B (385) (975)
Shareholder contribution REEE — 818
Net cash used in financing MEFBMEZ
activities Re FRR (5,780) (1,716)
Net increase/(decrease) in RekBAeFEZ
cash and cash equivalents #, CRd) E58 3,734 971)
Cash and cash equivalents at F/BONZEE R
beginning of the year/period ReFE (318) 515
Effect of exchange rate EXxEFH w8
changes (51) 138
Cash and cash equivalents at FHR AR
end of the year/period Re%E 27(b) 3,365 (318)

The notes on pages 68 to 138 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

HNFEBEF1BA LM ER AR BIHRE 2 —#8
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

68

General Information

Byford International Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 January 2003
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The address of its registered
office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies. The shares of the Company have
been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 27
June 20083.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in Note 31.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to

the year/period presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). The financial statements have

been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7
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7] o A EE 2t A Century Yard,
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(a)

IAS 1

(revised 2003)

IAS 2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The

conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain

preparation of financial statements in

critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

Note 4.

Effect of adopting new accounting standards

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Group
International
IFRS

Interpretations

adopted the following new/revised
Standards  (“IAS”),

Financial Reporting

Accounting and
International
Committee (“IFRIC”) Interpretation and Standing
Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) Interpretation
which are relevant to its operations. The
comparatives as at and for the 16 months ended
30 April 2005 have been amended as required, in

accordance with the relevant requirements.

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Inventories

(revised 2003)

IAS 8

(revised 2003)

Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates

and Errors

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHRRBE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) wWHEE (©F)

IAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet B B & 5T A B 1058 “ERBR=EE
(revised 2003) Date (ZZT=F BTN

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment & ERIE 165 ME - HER
(revised 2003) (ZZEZT=FBTR) Bgi

IAS 17 Leases BREaTERIETH HE
(revised 2003) (ZZZ=FEFTR)

IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in B e st R B 215 EXEH s 8
(revised 2003) Foreign Exchange Rates (ZEZE=FBIR)

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures B g &R 245 HEBEBALTZHE
(revised 2003) (ZEZ=F BT

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate BIFR & 5T 2 A £ 275% e KB IB
(revised 2003) Financial Statements (ZZEZT=FBTR) HmE

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: B B & 5T B 885325% HSTE - BERX
(revised 2003) Disclosure and Presentation (ZZEZT=FBFTR) 27

IAS 33 Earnings per Share BI PR & 5+ 22 Al 55 335 FREF
(revised 2003) (ZEZ=FBTR)

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets IR & 52 B 82 365% EERE
(issued 2004) (ZZZMERM)

IAS 38 Intangible Assets B B & 5T % B 8 385% BREE
(issued 2004) (ZETHEEM)

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: IZ;‘%AEﬁE 1l 8 395% MBIA: BREK
(revised 2003) Recognition and Measurement (ZZEZ=FBFTHR) HE

IAS 39 Transition and Initial ﬁf‘%@%ﬁ%ﬂ@%%?ﬁ eHEEREH
(Amendment) Recognition of Financial (83T) BREZBER

Assets and Financial Liabilities NI TR

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment B % B 7 o 5 2R RIS 25% & 2 2 B
(issued 2004) (ZZTWFREM)

IFRS 3 Business Combination B % B 75 3 5 AE B 835 By =i
(issued 2004) (ZZEZTMFHEM)

siC Consolidation — Special Purpose EHREZEORE He—%ARE
Interpretation 12 Entities F12%% (85]) £
(Amendment)
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHREBE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) WABEE (&)
IFRIC Changes in Existing BIR B 5 2 52 RERR MER
Interpretation 1 Decommissioning, Restoration ZEEREFRIN HERBZEH
and Similar Liabilities
IFRIC Member’s Shares in Co-operative BB ERERE ZERAIETEN
Interpretation 2 Entities and Similar Instruments ZEgRES2R Ik MR T A
The adoption of IAS 1, 2, 8, 10, 16, 17, 21, 24, 27, RABEKEFERE1-2-810"
32, 33, 36, 38, 39, 39 (Amendment), IFRS 2 and 3, 1617~ 21~ 24 27+ 32+ 33*
SIC Interpretation 12, IFRIC Interpretation 1 and 2 36+ 38 39%% + 39%% (1&5]) * BIRR
did not result in substantial changes to the B s ERIE 2R B3 - BiERE
accounting policies of the Group. In summary: ZESREE 12N NERMBEREE
BZESREFIRFE2REASEN
SBREEATE - TEHFIR
W
e IAS 1,2, 8, 10, 16, 17, 27, 32, 33, 36, 38, e HFEEEHERE1-2-8-10"
39, and 39 (Amendment), IFRS 2 and 3, SIC 1617~ 27~ 32+ 33+ 36"
Interpretation 12, IFRIC Interpretation 1 and 2 38 - 39%% & 3958 (f£5]) -« BIBR
had no material effect on the policies of the VHHmELENFEOIRFEIR - &
Group. BREZEESREF 129 ME
R BEHRERBEEE SR EE
RECKRERNEB 2 HRWEE
RE 2o
e |AS 21 had no material effect on the policy of . et ERE 215 H AR
the Company and its subsidiaries. The REMBRABIcHERSE %
functional currency of each of the entities of 2 - ARASERBLENBA
the Company and its subsidiaries has been Al M aE B B IR & 5] £ R
re-evaluated based on the guidance to the ZIESIETEM c AEEET
revised standard. All the group entities have FrEERYRAMARIEE
the same functional currency as the ERSBERWEBRRZIERE
presentation currency for respective entity o

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% s < Y 7

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHRRBE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) wWHEE (©F)

72

° IAS 24 has extended the identification of
related parties and some other related party

disclosures.

The adoption of IAS 38 results in a change in the
accounting policy for trademarks that have
indefinite useful lives. Until 30 April 2005, these

trademarks were:

— Amortised on a straight line basis over a

period of 20 years; and

— Assessed for an indication of impairment at

each balance sheet date.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 38:

— The Group ceased amortisation of these
trademarks from 1 May 2005;

— From 1 May 2005 onwards, trademarks that
have indefinite useful lives are tested annually
for impairment, as well as when there is
indication of impairment.

All changes in the accounting policies have been
made in accordance with the transitional provisions
in the respective standards.

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective

Certain  new standards, interpretations and
amendments to existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2006 or later periods but which the Group has not
early adopted for the year ended 30 April 2006, as
follows:

° IAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits

° IAS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions

° IAS 39 (Amendment), The Fair Value Option

° IAS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment), Financial
Guarantee Contracts

° IFRS 1 (Amendment), First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards
and IFRS 6 (Amendment), Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources

° IFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

° IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
and a complementary Amendment to IAS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements —
Capital Disclosures

° IFRIC Interpretation 4, Determining whether

an Arrangement contains a Lease

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards,
published standards that are not yet effective
(Continued)

interpretations and amendments to

° IFRIC Interpretation 5, Rights to Interests
arising from Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

° IFRIC Interpretation 6, Liabilities arising from
Participating in a Specific Market — Waste

Electrical and Electronic Equipment

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these changes and they do not
expect these changes to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 30 April.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls

another entity.

Byford International Limited ® & = B B R A 7
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHREBE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #ZRERE (&)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

Mﬁ?"ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ%lﬁfié%%%ﬁﬁz H

which control is transferred to the Group. They are BREHEGEFTE - MAESHEE A
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. BIEIGEEETHE -
The purchase method of accounting is used to AEBEZKABEGHESKERE L

account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their

fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of

AR - WEBRAREEZAFE
EBTRATARRR 5 H E 4k
EZaEMN B ERSIBUZ ARG
8 MNEBAHEAEZABINEER
BERIKRABENHFEREBER 2R
FERE  BOBBREDER - W
FB R B H N 52 1B P A1 P AR T 28
BEFEZAFEZBOIISEE -
R A DRI 2 B R B EE

the extent of any minority interest. The excess of FEZATE AEBEERARESR
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the R o

Group’s share of the identifiable net assets

acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of

acquisition is less than the fair value of the net

assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company  transactions,  balances  and NEflZR S ﬁ\*ﬁﬁ&’i"ﬁjﬁﬁz
unrealised gains on transactions between group R AERINZZ I HIME - BRIER
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are FHREEEENARE TE'H%M

also eliminated but considered an impairment

indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

ZEBRTERME - MEARZE5t
BRCIEHFTE 2B ARERER
SERMNZBR 2 -
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Notes to Financial Statements

SR MR
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHRRBE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) ZRERE (&)
In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in RERBZEEBEERN  RIBA
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated AZIEE DR R R REEIE
impairment losses, if any. The results of (IAE)FIER - RATFIRD W M ER 2
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on [ BB AR 2 EEANK -
the basis of dividends received and receivable.
(c) Segment reporting (c) 7EER
A business segment is a group of assets and ¥B0BE—HEEREL  RHE
operations engaged in providing products or b REIFREE RN EMEG B E
services that are subject to risks and returns that MRS o & D ERREELER
are different from those of other business f“W}ET [2 B K [ 2R ¥5  BI 7S H Ath 4F
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in BIRIGEE D B2 EmMRT -
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.
(d) Foreign currency translation (d) %@ E
()  Functional and presentation currency () WEREHREEK
ltems included in the financial statements of REEBSEBFAVBRRZ
each of the Group’s entities are measured HENERERBEEMEZEBE
using the currency of the primary economic KERBE 2EE ([ EE])
environment in which the entity operates (the AE A MBmEAABT
“functional  currency”). The consolidated (KRRIZBEREREE) 2
financial statements are presented in Hong Bl e

Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated

into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the
group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions); and

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iliy  Group companies (Continued)

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

differences

On consolidation, exchange

arising from the translation of the net

investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designed as hedges of such instruments, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits of the originally assessed
standard of performance of the existing asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the

financial year/period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful

lives, as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and 4 —10 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
its estimated

carrying amount is greater than

recoverable amount (Note 2(g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

included in the income statement.

Trademarks

Trademarks that have an indefinite life are carried at
historical cost less accumulated impairment, if any,
and are tested annually for impairment and when

there is indication of impairment.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation and
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. Cost comprises the
direct costs of merchandise and charges that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
and excludes

present location and condition,

borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable selling expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHREBE (&)

(Continued)

() Trade receivables (i) ESEKRNRE
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair B ERFTEATFENSER &
value and subsequently measured at amortised EAERERAN X EREER
cost using the effective interest method, less REBHEKARER - METBEIEETR
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment TN ES [ S T B H FE R IE 2 R 165K
of trade receivables is established when there is WEMERMBHRE  BEgELESE
objective evidence that the Group will not be able WHRIB 2 RERE EBALRERX
to collect all amounts due according to the original R e ERETHEE
terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties A REXKEENHER 588
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter REFERYFIBEREZER - BEZ
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default BHEAEERBELEGFFARLRRESR
or delinquency in payments are considered EREREBANEFTRFE) 25
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The BoBEZEERRERIBEERD
amount of the provision is the difference between SHAA ] —THRNTER °

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision,
is recognised in the income statement within selling

and distribution costs.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents (i) BeRkBReEE
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, HehASEEBEFERS « RT1T
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term MATFR - EEANSRENE AR
highly liquid investments with original maturity of BB A=EANUTZEE UK
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank RITEX - RITEZINEEAREXNA
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current NBBETRIABE -

liabilities on the balance sheet.
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(k) Share capital

0

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity shares,
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes),
is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such
shares are subsequently sold, or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity

attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHREBE (&)
(Continued)

(m) Deferred taxes (m) EEBIIE

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax, is not accounted for, if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or

the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probably that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

EREBMAEDRBABZEIRNEERGE
ZREEFENMBHRRZEEAELZ
ERMEZBEREEE - AT - HE
EHRBEDRNFEARRZEHEL T
B2t NERRN BN KEB XS
(XBAMBIIN) 2EERBEAME
£ BRI FHERAR - BELERETIER
AREEAERMAER LERMILT
BHRERARREERNEEENFE
BRELHARERERZHE (R
ED)) MEEE

11 AT BE B R 2R FE SR A s A P (F IR SH
FUEZE AERECRBEE -

BEXERBIRBRERK B AR RES
BRMEEZEELERE  EHARER
EHEREEE BRRERERKE
ERN A RORK A RE T & B E ARk
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(M

(i

Pension obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution
plans which are generally funded through

payments to trustee-administrated funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension
plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
benefits.  The

termination benefits when it is demonstrably

these Group recognises

committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after balance sheet

date are discounted to present value.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHHREBE (&)

(Continued)
(n) Employee benefits (Continued) n) EEEA (&)
(i)  Bonus plan (i) FEALET 2
The Group recognises a provision where WMASEABEHNEFNBE
contractually obliged or where there is a past BOEXHETESE  BlgBER
practice that has created a constructive B -
obligation.
(o) Provisions (o) BE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a A B R S EERR A
present legal or constructive obligation as a result TXETEET BEITZEMEAIREA
of past events; it is more likely than not that an BN ST ERRLE - Al
outflow of resources will be required to settle the SHEREE AEBTSRARIKRLE
obligation; and the amount has been reliably BIETEREE -

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the WMAEBBEZEEUSE  BIETE
likelihood that an outflow will be required in ERARKERZAJEETDNEE BE
settlement is determined by considering the class BETZEANERET - BMEREMET
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised ABEEFEZEE 2ERR L AT
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to IR RSB DS EREE -

any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEREARATRETERAAS
expenditures expected to be required to settle the BEBETCAXRENE  ZITH
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current ERMTSEREEEREEEBEZT
market assessments of the time value of money and HhkZETzBEERE - ARHEBAA
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in iMES 2 BEIEMERAET BT -

the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
merchandise and services, net of value-added tax,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:
(i)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and
collectibility of the related receivables is

reasonably assured.

(i) License income
License income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time

proportion basis using the effective interest

method.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(g) Leases

(@)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made wunder operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

Finance lease

Leases of plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased plant and equipment and the
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
The

rental obligations, net of finance charges, are

balance outstanding. corresponding
included in borrowings. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

or the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(r) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the

Company’s

Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Financial Risk Factors

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the
balance sheet include bank balances and cash, trade
receivables, long-term other payables, trade payables
and bank loans. The accounting policies on recognition
and measurement of these items are disclosed in Note 2
to the financial statements.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging

activities were considered by management.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactions, trade receivables and
payables that are mainly denominated in Malaysian
ringgit and Singapore dollars. The Group has
certain investment in foreign operations, whose net
assets are exposed to foreign currency translation
risk. The Group does not expect the net foreign
exchange exposure from these activities to be
significant and hence, the Group does not
presently hedge this foreign exchange exposure.
The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollars to ensure that net exposure is kept at an

acceptable level.
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3. Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services are made to

customers with an appropriate credit history.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk  management implies
maintaining  sufficient cash and marketable

securities and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding

by keeping committed credit lines available.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group

to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group regularly seeks out the most favourable
interest rates available for its bank borrowings.
Information relating to the interest rates of the
Group’s borrowings is disclosed in Note 22 to the

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
R e N

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to

be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.
(a) Estimated impairment of trademarks

The Group assesses whether trademarks have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(g). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been  determined based on  value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

(b) Estimated provision for doubtful debts

The Group makes provision for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. Provisions
are applied to trade receivables and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Continued)

(c)

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised to the
extent that management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
charge in the period in which estimate has been

changed.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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5. Turnover EXH

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EBhEF —ZEETMEF
EA—BZE —RA—B=Z&
—EEXREF —ETRF
mMA=+H mMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Sales of goods HEE X 23,358 56,671
Licensing income PEAZ R A 5,988 6,476
29,346 63,147

6. Segmental Information TEER

Primary reporting format — business
segments

As at 30 April 2006, the Group is organised on a
worldwide basis into two main business segments,

namely:

(i) Sales of men’s innerwear, socks and apparels

(“Sales of goods”); and

(i) Licensing of the Group’s trademarks relating to
Byford branded men’s innerwear, socks and
apparels and Baby-Q branded fashion for babies’

products in return for royalty income (“Licensing”).
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

TEEHR (&F)
TEEHRAX —XBIE (B

6. Segmental Information (Continued) 6.

Primary reporting format — business
segments (Continued)

BHE_ZTRXFEA=THILFEREZE
—ZEERFWA=THIETREAZEE

The segment information by business for the year ended
30 April 2006 and 16 months ended 30 April 2005 are as

follows: DEERWT :
Sales of goods Licensing Total
HEEMR HERE @t
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
“2RXRE _TTRF ZBEAF _TTHF ZEEAF _TTIF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTHEL TER TEL TERT FTEL

External sales IR E 23,358 56,671 5,988 6,476 29,346 63,147
Segment results o *Eiii (191) 2,159 2,180 3,579 1,989 5,738
Unallocated corporate ﬂ% A

expenses (2,864) (7,687)
Operating loss REER (875) (1,949)
Gain on disposal of ﬁ '% FMBRAIZ

a subsidiary W= 824 —
Finance costs BEKA (385) (975)
Income tax expense FB#EXZ (164) (36)
Loss for the year/period 4 ,/HRE (600) (2,960)
Segment assets DEEE 8,797 25,043 19,905 16,194 28,702 41,237
Unallocated corporate APBRBEE

assets 3,651 845
Deferred tax assets BEEHBEEE - 277
Total assets BEE 32,353 42,359
Segment liabilities DEEE 2,472 6,448 1,029 44 3,501 6,492
Borrowings 1‘i§ 438 7,628
Unallocated corporate APENBEE

liabilities 566 782
Taxation payable FET 18 51 104
Deferred tax liabilities EREFBEEE 50 —
Total liabilities BEE 4,606 15,006
Segment capital NEERRY

expenditures 155 135 98 2,891 253 3,026
Unallocated corporate APEDBER

capital expenditures 53 2 —

255 3,026

Segment depreciation and 7 4847 & & % 3%

amortisation 414 900 110 1,429 524 2,329
Unallocated corporate APEDTFER

depreciation and iy

amortisation 15 20

539 2,349
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6. Segmental Information (Continued)

Primary reporting format — business
segments (Continued)

Segment assets consist primarily plant and equipment,

trademarks, inventories, receivables and operating cash.

They exclude deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They

exclude taxation payable and deferred tax liabilities.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to plant and

equipment and  trademarks. Depreciation
amortisation comprise depreciation of plant

equipment and amortisation of trademarks.

Unallocated assets and liabilities represent assets and
liabilities not dedicated to a particular segment, consist

primarily of taxation and corporate assets and liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

6. Segmental Information (Continued) 6.

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments

The Group’s two business segments operate in four

main geographical locations.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

turnover, total assets and capital expenditures by

geographical locations.

B 755 R R M =

REZHIN —HESE

AEBMEXB BT EENEERE

TRERBOIBRERHASEZEXE &
BENRERFAI 2O

Turnover Total assets Capital expenditures
EXE BEE EXEX
1 May 1 January 1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to At At 2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEHE —ZTNF “EZRE _TTNHF
IA—-HE —HA—HZE i ®n ERA-HE —A—-HZE
“REAF _TTHS ZBREAF _TTHHF ZBREAE _TTHF
MA=Z+H WMA=+H WA=+H WA=+H WMA=Z+H HEA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTHET THERT FAET TERT FET
Malaysia BRAD 2,219 27,047 16,591 29,485 56 50
Singapore CimiE 16,826 22,625 12,082 12,027 197 2,976
Dubai HFE 5,127 5,907 - — - —
Others HAth 5,174 7,568 3,680 847 2 —
29,346 63,147 32,353 42,359 255 3,026

Turnover is based on the location of customers. Total
assets and capital expenditures are based on the

location of those assets.

EEBEDIRBEEPMAENME - REERER
X TIIRBZEEEZMEGE -
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B 75 #R R Y 5

7. Other Income Hfth e A
1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EBAEF —ETME
EA—RE —HA—B=%
—EERE —EELF
B=+H WA=+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Write-back of allowance i 8] R AR AE 4

for doubtful debts 256 614
Interest income FE WA 137 —

Gain on disposal of plant & # 25 & R 45 W 25
and equipment 162 —
Others HApt — 12
555 626
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8.

Expenses by Nature

(@) Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

distribution costs and general and administrative

expenses are analysed as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

8. FAX(RHMHESE)

@ MXBREEEXES  HERDHEKIAK - —
METBHEX > 2WWAT :

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
-0 —_ZEETMEF
HTA—AZ% —HA—B=%
—EEXRE —TTREF
mAE=+H mMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Depreciation of plant and ~ #23 & REITE (M 5E14)

equipment (Note 14) 539 1,112
Amortisation of PR (B EE15)

trademarks (Note 15) — 1,237
Provision for impairment 5 IR R E R

of trade receivables (M5E17)

(Note 17) 563 618
Employment costs fE B (BH3E13)

(Note 13) 8,042 12,190
Changes in inventories FEE 12,800 33,975
Operating lease LEBORK

payments in respect of:

— office premises and — WRERET

staff quarters BE 839 1,956
Net foreign exchange EHEEFE

losses 118 993

Auditors’ remuneration ZE A& 451 868

F HAN 18 497,039,0008 T (ZEEH
& 6,555,000/ 70) E R AR A B 5l KR
IR o

(b) Loss for the year/period is dealt with in the financial (b)
statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately HK$7,039,000 (2005: HK$6,555,000).
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9. Finance Costs & X A
1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EBERF —ZETNF
EFA—HZE —H—B=ZE
—EEXREF —ETTRF
B=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
Interest expenses: FERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 335 862
Finance lease obligations Bt & A 497 4 50 113
385 975
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B i R MR
10. Income Tax Expense 10. FTB %R

1 May 1 January

2005 to 2004 to

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

—EBERF —ETNF

TA—HAZ% —H—B=®

—EEBARE —_ETThHF

A=+H WmA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FET

Current income tax BN ER P15 7%
— Overseas taxation — BHNEIIE 115 185
— Over-provision in — EFEBEREE
prior years = (313)
115 (128)
Deferred tax (Note 24) B IR IE (B 5E24)
— Current year — B 28 164
— Under-provision in — EFETREE

prior years 21 —

49 164

164 36

ARARR—RKRASES MM LER R
WRR Bt ARRIBASHEREN
SMERE B ABNRESFEHIEA -

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, as such, it is not liable for taxation in

the Cayman Islands on its non-Cayman Islands income.

PP AN SR [ 30 S 70 BB B AR AT A AR
A B EERBENESHES - UE
SNE R P 2 IR TR AR B E B R
ZBRITBEGE BN R RTOS R E

st

year/period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the g5

No Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in or deriving from
Hong Kong. Taxation on overseas profits has been

calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the

countries in which the Group operates.
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10. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
profits tax rate of Hong Kong, the home country of the

Group, as follows:

10. FiBHHAX (&)

AEBERASHABEZ HEERBES
(REBOMBERZR) MSHRHRAERME

EZERBENTRNOT

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EFRF —ZEETMEF
EA—BZE —RA—RB=Z&
ZEERE —TTRF
mAE=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
Loss before income tax Bk B 15 B AT S 18 (436) (2,924)
Calculated at a taxation 17 5% (2T RHE -
rate of 17.5% 17.56%) < R EFE
(2005: 17.5%) (76) (512)
Effect of different taxation — H fh B K £K 8 A [F] Bt 2
rates in other countries -7 - 585 441
Utilisation of previously FARTRERTIEBIE
unrecognised tax losses —_ (213)
Income not subject to BARMR 2 WA
taxation (1,361) (1,994)
Expenses not deductible 7~ A #0154 5 %
for taxation purposes 707 2,627
Tax losses for which no RERBEERIBEEE 2
deferred tax i T8 &5 18
asset was recognized 288 —
Under/(over)-provision TFEETR/ (B BHE
in prior years 21 (313)
164 36
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11.

12.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend for the year ended 30 April 2006 (2005: Nil).

Loss Per Share

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the
loss for the vyear/period, attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year/

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ¥R R B 5

1. BE

EETEBRREBE _TTRFOA
BEFERBERE(ZZTETAF « T
JT) e

_|_

~

A1
o

A

12. ERE#E
(a) &R
FRERERIIRE,BHNED TR
2

B A BR S BNE
17 % 8RR 2 AT B -

period.
1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEhE —ZEEMF
TA—HAZ —H—H=Z
—EEARE e
B=+H mMA=+H
Loss for the year/ F /BN R B R
period attributable A ARLER
to equity holders of (T /&7T)
the Company
(HK$’000) 600 2,960
Weighted average BEITERR 2 INE
number of ordinary FHE (T
shares in issue
(000) 200,000 200,000
Basic loss per share &R EARE B (B1L)
(HK cents) 0.3 1.5
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12. Loss Per Share (Continued) 12. BREE (8)
(b) Diluted (b) #8

There are no outstanding options under the HEZEXFUA=1THLEFER
Company’s share options  schemes  and HE_ZZTRAFHA=+THILETE
accordingly there is no dilutive effect on loss for the R RAGERERT &I RAT
year ended 30 April 2006 and the 16 months fF B  AEBEL ST
ended 30 April 2005. 2.

13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERA (BEESEMHS)

Emoluments)

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EBFRF —ZEETMEF
ERA—HZE —RA—BZ&
ZEERE —TTRF
mAE=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTET
Salaries, bonuses and e - AL ROER
allowances 7,324 11,258
Pension costs RIK® AR
— defined contribution — E RS
plans 499 886
Staff welfare and benefits {8 8 1& 7 &% #| z 219 46
8,042 12,190
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13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERAX(BEEEME) (&)
Emoluments) (Continued)

(a) The number of persons employed at the end of the (@) RFEHRERZAZ:
year:
2006 2005
—BERE —ZETRF
Full time 28 40 82
Part time R — 7
40 89
(@) The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong @ AEBCDLHEESESS MMM
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund NiEestE ([RESFTE) - bEHE
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution TDHBYEFEAERBZE 1#\ ET
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under o RIEBIBELFE  AEERER
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong BREEBS T ARBERIEATE RS
Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the ZEG G ANEB WA Z5%:T B M
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as FZETEER R - AEFHEES 2 #
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund KERE AT H1,0008 7T °

legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’

contributions are subjected to a cap of HK$1,000

per month.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in certain BWIE T EINAR 2B RIER T
overseas countries, the Group contributes to o ASEAESMMEEE EBEMHENR
retirement plans for its employees in the respective RRETEIERRR - AEBEERE
locations, which are defined contribution plans. The REMBEAREIETE - 7 RIAE
Group and its employees contribute approximately EH D 6% 13% % 11%— 20%1E
6%-13% and 11%-20% respectively, of the HE ﬁﬁwilﬁfﬁﬁﬂ O 1
employees’ salary as specified by the local EE—PERHMNRREIRINER
jurisdiction, and the Group has no further ﬂZ%EE

obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement  benefits beyond the annual

contributions.
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13. BEERFX (BEESEME) (&)

13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’
Emoluments) (Continued)

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the aggregate
amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes were
approximately HK$499,000 (2005: HK$886,000).
As at 30 April 2006, the Group was not entitled to
any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s
future contributions (2005: Nil).

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of every director for the year

REBEEZ_ZTTEAFNA=THILSF
B REER LR ARSEE 2 HR
HBEEH) /499,000 L (ZETRF ¢
886,000 7L) - RZEZERFWA=
TH - NREBE W EES AWK
ZHEFUBRIDAEEBREER(ZE
TRE &) o

EEMe

BHE_ZZXFOA=1THILFES

ended 30 April 2006 is set out below: NEENHFMET :
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
Bikesta
Expgs ne F MR Htt@A ZEEHR @t
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors WITESE
Wang Lu Yen THE 12,000 — — — — 12,000
Chai Sing Hong BER 12,000 — — — — 12,000
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob Win B 12,000 — — — — 12,000
Liu Tsun Kie (i) 2 & () 12,000 — — — — 12,000
Non-executive directors ERTES
Md. Wira Dani Bin Md. Wira Dani Bin
Abdul Daim Abdul Daim 12,000 — — — — 12,000
George Chen (ii) R AR (i) 12,000 — — — — 12,000
Alternate director ERES
Choong Khuat Leok R — 348,000 — 420,000 12,000 780,000
Independent non-executive BV FHITEE
directors
Chow Chi Kiong Chow Chi Kiong 80,000 — — — — 80,000
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REE 80,000 - - - - 80,000
Chong Tao Boon, Vincent (i) % & 3 (i) 72,584 — — — — 72,584
Liew Swee Yean, Ivan (iv) 2155 (iv) 7,640 — — — — 7,640
312,224 348,000 — 420,000 12,000 1,092,224
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B i R MR
13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERK (BREEMS) (&)

Emoluments) (Continued)
(o) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EHME (&)

Notes: M aE

0] Resigned with effect from 30 April 2006. 0] RZETZANFUA=+THEIT -

(ii) Resigned with effect from 30 April 2006. i) RZEEXNFMNA=FTHEE-

(i) Resigned with effect from 28 March 2006. iy RZTEEXF=ZAZFNBET-

(iv)  Appointed with effect from 28 March 2006. vy RZZETSRF=ZA=-+N\BEZ{F-
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13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERAK(BEESEMHS) (&)
Emoluments) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) b) EZ=B<e (&)
The emoluments of every director for the 16 HE_ZTRAFHOA=1THILETE
months ended 30 April 2005 is set out below: AEUESNEFMHBT
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
BiREE
EENZ we 4 BERL HER ZEZHX @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT ow ow
Executive directors HTEZ
Chai Sing Hong EER 255,499 — — - — 255499
Chai Sing Fai BEE 210,000 96,000 — — 4,800 310,800
Peter C Duncan HERES 446,511 459,380 — — — 905,891
Wang Lu Yen T#E 7,700 — — — — 7,700
Lin Jui Hsien, Jacob iR B 7,700 — — — — 7,700
Khoo Kim Cheng B#H5 7,700 — — - - 7,700
Alternate director BIEE
Choong Khuat Leok HR% 160,000 272,000 40,000 560,000 16,000 1,048,000
Non-executive directors ERTES
Md. Wira Dani Bin Md. Wira Dani Bin
Abdul Daim Abdul Daim 39,667 — — — — 39,667
George Chen TR B 7,700 — — — — 7,700
Independent non-executive ~ BUIFEHTES
directors
Chow Chi Kiong Chow Chi Kiong 106,667 — — — — 106,667
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REEZ 106,667 — — — — 106,667
Chong Tao Boon, Vincent EEX 50,000 — — — — 50,000
1,405,811 827,380 40,000 560,000 20,800 2,853,991

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive HZE—ZZXFHNA=+HER-_ZZRFNA
any emoluments during the year/period ended 30 Z=+HIEF #R  BEEERELR S ME
April 2006 and 30 April 2005. EMEE -
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B i R MR
13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERA (BREEEM2) (&)
Emoluments) (Continued)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals ) REzESFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRN - AREZRERRIFATEIE
highest in the Group for the year include two (2005: ME(ZZETRF MB)EE - H
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in SEREXZENNZMFRER - F
the analysis presented above. The emoluments N EBENTEH=ZFZ(ZTETRF :
payable to the remaining three (2005: three) =E)ATZBemT ¢
individuals during the year are as follows:
1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EERHF —EETMEF
TA—HAZ —H—H=Z
—EEXREF —_EThF
A=+AH mMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Salaries and e LM
allowances 1,733 2,609
Discretionary )15 B AL
bonuses 107 239
Pension costs — BRIREKAR —
defined E 7
contribution plan G2l 78 —
1,918 2,848
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MaeNF Ty EE
Number of individuals
AE
2006 2005
—EEXREF —EERF
Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 3 3
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13. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ 13. EERAKX (BEEEME) (&)
Emoluments) (Continued)

(d) No emolument was paid to the directors of the ) AEBWERAAQFEETILEESD
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an FALTZHME - ERIMAKREE S
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MAXREE %R 2 BRI BEBHE -

compensation for loss of office.

14. Plant and Equipment 14. HEREHE
The Group RE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HM - £E
EMAERE RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2004 —EENFE—-H—H
Cost DN 3,802 3,088 6,890
Accumulated depreciation R EHITE (2,938) (1,266) (4,204)
Net book amount REEE 864 1,822 2,686
Period ended BE-ZZRF
30 April 2005 MA=+HLH™H
Opening net book amount  HA ¥ Bk M /F# (& 864 1,822 2,686
Additions NE 135 — 135
Disposal (Note 27) H & (M 5E27) (16) (201) (217)
Depreciation charge TEXZH (s
(Note 8) (357) (755) (1,112)
Exchange differences JE N E R 27 43 70
Closing net book amount  BR#R BRI /F{E 653 909 1,562
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14. Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. BERRE (&)
The Group (Continued) rEE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
BH - £E
ERAERE RE HBEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
At 30 April 2005 —EEFEFWA=1+H
Cost DN 3,791 2,619 6,410
Accumulated depreciation ZiFITE (3,138) (1,710) (4,848)
Net book amount REFE 653 909 1,562
Year ended BE-ZZARE
30 April 2006 MAE=+HLFE
Opening net book amount 4 ¥ BR )% & 653 909 1,562
Additions NE 255 — 255
Disposal (Note 27) & (M 5E27) 9) (454) (463)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKMEAQA

(Note 29) (P 3£ 29) (130) (37) (167)
Depreciation charge FrEXH (FisEs)

(Note 8) (181) (358) (539)
Exchange differences ERZE 16 17 33
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 604 77 631

At 30 April 2006 —EEXEWNA=1+H
Cost DN 2,168 1,804 3,972
Accumulated depreciation ZE:tiTE (1,564) (1,727) (3,291)
Net book amount REFE 604 77 681
Depreciation expense has been charged to general and MERIEH—RETHRAZFNE -

administrative expenses.
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14. Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The Company

14. BBRRE (B)
ENN
Furniture, fixtures

and office equipment

B KERBRLOERRE

HK$'000
FBT
At 1 January 2004 —EENME-A—H
Cost X AR 94
Accumulated depreciation 2 &HITE (5)
Net book amount REFE 89
Period ended BE-ZZRF
30 April 2005 MA=+HLHE
Opening net book amount ¥ BR /% & 89
Disposal o= (12)
Depreciation charge TEZH (20)
Closing net book amount HR4R BR T VF B 57
At 30 April 2005 —EEHFMA=TH
Cost [N 79
Accumulated depreciation  EREFITE (22)
Net book amount REEE 57
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14. Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14, BWER®RE (E)
The Company (Continued) KATF (&)

Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment

B KERRDERE

HK$'000
FET
Year ended BE-ZZARE
30 April 2006 MA=+HLEE
Opening net book amount 4 ¥ BR )% & 57
Additions NE 2
Disposal k= (1)
Depreciation charge mEZY (13)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 45
At 30 April 2006 —EEAEMNA=+A
Cost BN 79
Accumulated depreciation Z&HiTE (34)
Net book amount REFE 45

Depreciation expense has been charged to general and T ERYX BN — M EITHE X TING -

administrative expenses.
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15. Trademarks 15. HE
HK$’'000
FET
At 1 January 2004 —EENME-A—H
Cost [N 18,387
Accumulated amortisation 2 &2 §4 (2,759)
Net book amount REFE 15,628
Period ended BZ_ZZHF
30 April 2005 MA=+HLHE
Opening net book amount  HA 471 BR M1 )% (& 15,628
Additions NBE 2,891
Amortisation charge BiH o (MsEs)
(Note 8) (1,237)
Exchange differences E N ERE 152
Closing net book amount HR4R BR T F B 17,434
At 30 April 2005 —EZERFWA=1+H
Cost [N 21,642
Accumulated amortisation 2 & %4 §4 (4,208)
Net book amount R FE 17,434
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15. Trademarks (Continued) 15. @& (&)
HK$’000
FET
Year ended BE-_ZZTAEF
30 April 2006 MA=+HLEE
Opening net book amount 4 ¥ 8k  JF (& 17,434
Exchange differences EH ERE 709
Closing net book amount & X BR T JF (B 18,143
At 30 April 2006 —EEXRFWNA=1H
Cost BN 22,363
Accumulated amortisation £ 5tk 4 (4,220)
Net book amount BRmEFE 18,143
16. Inventories 16. FE
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZEBEXREF R-ZZEZERF
B=+8H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT TFET
Finished goods LAY fh 3,731 8,519

RERRFAZ M ATHEXNNOFERAN
7$13,808,000/8 7T (ZZEZ 1 & : 35,099,000/

JT) e

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to HK$13,808,000
(2005: HK$35,099,000).
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17. Trade Receivables 17. EZEIWFIE
The credit terms granted to customers range from 60 to rEEGTESHEP FH0E90B 2 EE
90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as B - B RWFBZREDTAT
follows:
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEXREF RZZETRF
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
0-30 days 0-30H 2,012 3,826
31-60 days 31-60H 951 2,982
61-90 days 61-90H 1,418 2,262
91-120 days 91-120H 598 1,421
121-180 days 121-180H 61 888
181-365 days 181-365H 463 924
Over 365 days 3658 M 13 546
5,516 12,849
Less: Provision for B B 5 EWRIERE
impairment of B
trade receivables (575) (1,027)
4,941 11,822
During the vyear, the Group recognised a loss of FA - AEERAEHEWFIERESE
HK$563,000 (2005: HK$618,000) for the impairment of its 563,000 7t (Z T Z A & : 618,000/
trade receivables. The loss has been included in selling T0) o ZIEEIEE R ARG RAOEE KD H
and distribution costs in the income statement. B A o
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. EZENFE (&)
Trade receivables are denominated in the following ZHEBFBU T EE BB
currencies:

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZZEERE R-_ZTTREF
A=+H WA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Hong Kong dollars BT 261 225
Singapore dollars g o 3,997 4,684
Malaysian ringgit B 212 6,606
Others H 1,046 1,334
5,516 12,849
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate EZRWERIENEOEREATERS

their fair value.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade HRAKEBEEFHEREZ - 28 T~R
receivables are limited due to the Group’s large number X AUHBIRRFEEESTFHRARE
of customers, who are internationally disposed. Due to R-EZERNHERE BEEHEE A5HE
these factors, management believes that no additional MEZREWIE  WEBBEE (BB
significant credit risk beyond amounts provided for K)BENEINEREERR -

impairment (collection losses) is inherent in the Group’s

trade receivables.
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18. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 18. EfARIE - e R HEMEKRRIE
Receivables

Group Company
biN 3 NN
At At At At

30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R=2FxE RZTTHF R-BEAF R-TTILF
MA=1H MA=+H MA=1H mA=t1H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER FHET
Prepayments BN RE 746 565 547 134
Other receivables Hi IR 220 438 - —
966 1,003 547 134
19. Cash and Cash Equivalents 19. RERREEE
Cash and cash equivalents comprised: RehBReEERE
Group Company
b3S NN
At At At At

30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
RZEEXRE R-ZEERF RZEERE R-ZETRE
mMA=+H MA=+H mMA=+H MA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER FTEL
Bank deposits with original THREEA
maturity BIIER
— Under three months —Zf@ARA 1,916 — - —
Other cash at banks and HuRTEFR
in hand FER® 1,845 1,742 949 639
3,761 1,742 949 639
The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 3.72% RITFRNERENERIT2E (ZZTH
(2005: Nil) per annum. These deposits have an average F:F)  c WEGTRMFHBRAT7H (=
maturity of seven days (2005: Nil). TTERFE) o
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20. Trade Payables 20. EZEARIE
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BORNFBBZRROMOT ¢
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEAXREF RZZTELTRF
MA=+H MA=+8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
0-30 days 0-30H 1,133 1,700
31-60 days 31-60H 742 1,390
61-90 days 61-90H — 758
91-120 days 91-120H —_ —
Over 120 days 1208 A £ — 1
1,875 3,849
Trade payables are denominated in the following ZSREMNFIBEATINEE RBA
currencies:
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZZARE RZZEZTRF
mMA=+H MmA=+8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FiBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 887 1,286
Singapore dollars TN T 545 857
Malaysian ringgit B — 921
Others EA 443 785
1,875 3,849
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate EHRMNHRENEAERERAFEMREE -

their fair values.
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21. Accruals and Other Payables 21. EFtERARHMESRIE
Group Company
rEE b N
At At At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
EA—?7/\$ —77£¢ BA—??/\¢ F—ggﬁi
mA=+H mA=+H mWA=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TET TER FTEL
Accrued expenses [Ext 2 1,863 3,319 566 880
Other payables Hio e FRIE 329 106 - —
2,192 3,425 566 880
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22. Borrowings 22. B8
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZZEERE R-_ZTTREF
A=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FiET
Non-current EREB
Long-term loans, RHER - ERD
non-current portion B — 466
Finance lease & A FE
obligations (Note 23) (Mg 5E23) — 156
—_ 622
Current B
Bank overdrafts |ITHEX
(Note 27(b)) (M 5E27(b)) 396 2,060
Trust receipts bank loans ERWIERITER — 598
Long-term loans, REIER  R®
current portion 7 — 3,992
Finance lease Bh& T 4 A
obligations (Note 23) (P 5£23) 42 356
438 7,006
438 7,628
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22. Borrowings (Continued) 22, 188 (&)
RITELINOHRITERTEFEFNEKT5E
(ZZETAHF  45EZ85E)FTHEHFE -
EHERFNEAZT(ZZEZTHF 85
[B) - REE B IEFEHERFENT -

The bank overdrafts and short-term bank loans bear
interest at 7.5% (2005: 4.5% to 8.5%) per annum. The
long-term loans bear interest at Nil (2005: 8.5%) per
annum. The weighted average effective interest rates at

the balance sheet date were as follows:

At At

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

R-ZBEXRE RZZETRF

B=+H mA=+H

% %

Bank overdrafts RITEX 7.5 8.3

Short-term bank loans REIRITER N/A TEA 6.3

Long-term bank loans REIRITE R N/A F3E A 8.5
Finance lease obligations  §it & i 49 # 4

(Note 23) (B 5£283) 2.6 3.3

The maturity of long-term loans (excluding finance lease

obligations (Note 23)) is as follows:

EHER (TREREMAASE (K5E23))

ZEBRMT

At At

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

R=ZBEARF R_ZELF

mE=+H mA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FET

Within one year —F R — 3,992
Between one and —EWMEA

two years —_ 466

—_ 4,458
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22. Borrowings (Continued) 22, &8 (&)
The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current IRHEENEEELRAFENOT ¢
borrowings are as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
EEE AFE
At At At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
BA—? ?/\¢ F—ggﬁi EA—? ?/\$ \:TT£¢
mMA=+A MA=+A mMA=+A mMA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TER FTET
Long-term loans, non-current REER
portion FERBIED - 466 - 458
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are AEBMNEEUTNES BB
denominated in the following currencies:
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEBXREF RZZEZTREF
mMA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Singapore dollars s T 438 217
Malaysian ringgit B — 4,908
Hong Kong dollars BT — 2,500
Great British pounds g — 3
438 7,628
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23. Finance Lease Obligations 23. BMEHENEIE
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-BBXEF RZZEZTRF
B=+H WA=+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Minimum lease payments  [EfT &K & -
due:
Not later than one year —F R 48 405
Later than one year and —FRERFRK
not later than five years —_ 176
48 581
Future finance charges BEMEOEAENBRE
on finance lease BEER
obligations (6) (69)
Present value of finance BhE A ERE
lease obligations 42 512
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23. Finance Lease Obligations (Continued) 23. MEBRYKRE (B)
The present value of finance lease obligations is analysed BEMEOAEBREITEAT
as follows:
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZZEERE R-_ZTTREF
A=+H WA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Not later than one year —F R 42 356
Later than one year and —FRBRERFH
not later than five years —_ 156
42 512
The lease terms range from three to five years with MHA=ZN4F  WEEEITNAKEZE
option to purchase at nominal amount at the end of the BEA -
term.
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to MBEAY  HHEENEMNESEHE AR
the leased assets revert to lessors in the event of default. At HEABEEBRLEAER -
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B 7% s < Y 7

24. Deferred Tax 24, EEBIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is BEEEANMTENITERERTIEEE
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets EREFHIEAERECHIBEEEBR —§
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes BHEEE BB EERIEEEREARE
related to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts i - MIHEmM T -

are as follows:

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEEBAREF WZZEZThE
mMA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Deferred tax assets to 81218 A & i W =l 8
be recovered after BEERIBEE
more than 12 months —_ 277
Deferred tax liabilities to HEiB 1218 AR A &N
be settled after more RIERIEE &
than 12 months 50 —
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24, Deferred Tax (Continued) 24,

The gross movements on the deferred tax account is as

follows:

Deferred
tax assets
EEHEEE

At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
RZZBRE N_ZTLF
A=+tH MWmA=+H
HK$000 HK$'000

B 755 R R M =

EET IR (&)

BETRERESHERAT ¢

Deferred
tax liabilities Total
EEHERE aE

At At At At

30 April 2006 30 April 2005 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZEAE N-_TThF R-REAE R-FTIF
MmA=+H WA=+tH W®A=+H MWA=TA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ER TR TER TR TER FEx
At beginning of the year/period &/ 81 277 430 - — 277 430
Charged to the income statement EhERANR - (164) (49) — (49) (164)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 29) HE-XMBLA
(Ft3£29) (277) — - — (277) —
Exchange differences ELEE - 11 1) — 1) 11
At end of the year/period F /R - 277 (50) — (50) 277

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

EERAEERAENESY (THER—#
MEDEERAGROEE) JIFHAT ¢

EEHBEEE

Tax losses
HEEE

At 30 April 2006
R=ZBERF
A=+H
HK$°000

TERT

At beginning of year
Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 29)

F40
HE—RW B AR (M 5E29)

277

277)

At end of year
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued) 24, EEFRE ()
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Tax
Provisions depreciation Total
B BB wmE
At 30 April 2006 At 30 April 2006 At 30 April 2006
RIBEXRF RIBEXRF RIBEARE
mA=+H mA=+H mMA=1+H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TET
At beginning of year £ — — —
Credited/(charged) to FEUWRERIA GIB)
income statement 36 (85) (49)
Exchange differences E N 1 (2) 1)
At end of year R 37 (87) (50)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried AR SR 25 A @B R SR FE SRR SH R
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related T QB EERSEER2AELRE
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The BE - NEBEHBEIB 41,443,000 T
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of — T T HE : 25,288,000 7T) A 4 840
approximately HK$288,000 (2005: HK$7,081,000) in B ok R FEBR R A - SR R RE R IE R I8
respect of losses amounting to approximately B FE 42880008 T (T | &
HK$1,443,000 (2005: HK$25,288,000) that can be 7,081,000 7T) °

carried forward against future taxable income.
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25. Share Capital 25. A
Number of shares Amount
v g=| £ gL
’000 HK$’000
F B FHE T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of RZEERFNA=ZF+HEK
HK$0.01 each —EERFEWMA="H
At 30 April 2006 and FEE.01 BT
30 April 2005 2 iR 1,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITRHERK
At 30 April 2006 and RZZBZEXRFOA=Z+HRK
30 April 2005 —ZEETRFWPA=+H 200,000 2,000
26. Reserves 26. A&
(a) Group (a £
Accumulated
Share Special Translation profits/
premium reserve reserve (losses) Total
BEF/
RPEE Rl G ERRE (F8) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT TET
At 1 January 2004 R-BEME—-A—8 18,428 7,205 (126) 3,502 29,009
Loss for the period BHER — — — (2,960) (2,960)
Dividend paid ERBRE - - - (2,000) (2,000)
Shareholder contribution RETE — 818 — — 818
Currency translation differences &% ¥ 1= % — — 486 — 486
At 30 April 2005 RZZEZTREFNA=1A 18,428 8,023 360 (1,458) 25,353
Loss for the year FRERE — — — (600) (600)
Currency translation differences &% ¥ =% — — 994 — 994
At 30 April 2006 RZZEEAEFNA=1A 18,428 8,023 1,354 (2,058) 25,747
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26. f&#E (&)

26. Reserves (Continued)

alj

(b) Company (b) A

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

BB E EBEE 5

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FE T

At 1 January 2004 R-—ZZEZEWMF—H—H 18,428 (1,881) 16,547
Loss for the period BN EE — (6,555) (6,555)
Dividend paid BERE — (2,000) (2,000)
At 30 April 2005 RZETZRFNA=+H 18,428 (10,436) 7,992
Loss for the year FREE — (7,039) (7,039)
At 30 April 2006 RZEZERNFNA=+H 18,428 (17,475) 953

Special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of D Byford
Holdings Limited, which was the holding company
of other members of the Group prior to a group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for share exchange at

the time of the group reorganisation.

Shareholder  contribution  represents  amount
reimbursed by a minority shareholder of the
Company, who is also a director of the Company,
for the exchange loss incurred by the Group upon
settlement of payable for the acquisition of a

trademark .
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B ISk ok
27. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow 27. FERERERWE
Statement
(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operations @ KEEKFRE /FEzEE
1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EE2IHF —TTNF
TA—HAZ% —H—H=
—BERE —ZEELF
B=+H WmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAETT
Loss before B FT 15 0 AT E5 18
income tax (436) (2,924)
Adjustments for: Y ZBELFAE
Depreciation on e R EITE

plant and

equipment 539 1,112
Amortisation on [EREE: ¥

trademarks —_ 1,237
(Gain)/loss on HERRREER

disposal of plant B2l S i 28 R AR

and equipment (=) /KB

and plant and

equipment

written off (153) 5
Gain on disposal HE—ZRM BRI ZWa=

of a subsidiary (Fff 5F29)

(Note 29) (824) —
Interest expense B 385 975
Interest income MEWA (137) —
Exchange loss on REEBELBRE

operating activities 324 115
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27. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow 27. MEBREHRERWE (&)
Statement (Continued)

(@) Cash (used in)/generated from operations (@ KEXEK R FBzHES (&)
(Continued)

1 May 1 January

2005 to 2004 to

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

—EBFLF —_ZEEMEF

HTA—AZ —RA—B=%

—BERE e

mMA=+H mMA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

#Eh

Changes in working &BE&&¢&

capital:
Inventories FE (751) 317
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 1,357 7,661
Prepayments, FERZIE ek

deposits and H 4th & W 5B

other receivables (234) (99)
Balance with HEBEQREH

related companies (130) —
Trade payables 2 5 e RIE (1,363) (2,489)
Accruals and EFtER R

other payables H At & - 3R IR (1,260) (2,143)
Cash (used in)/ mEER ()

generated from g zH &

operations (2,683) 3,767
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27. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow 27. KEBREREXRMTE (&)
Statement (Continued)
(@) Cash (used in)/generated from operations @ KEEH ) FEzRe (&)
(Continued)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds REBHERERN  HEMSREE
from disposal of plant and equipment comprise: Frgs BRI

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEAHF —_ZEEMEF
HTA—AZ% —HA—B=%
—EEBARE —EThE
mMA=+8 mMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Net book amount R FE (FTeE14)
(Note 14) 463 217
Gain/(loss) on disposal H & # 25 & % 8 &
of plant and Bl 5H 1 2R K 7R A
equipment and i (E18)
plant and equipment
written off 153 (9]
Proceeds from HEMEE RRE
disposal of plant Fir 15 38
and equipment 616 212
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27. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow . REHERERKE (&)
Statement (Continued)

(b) For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow b) mEReReRERME  HelkRe
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise: LE/IE
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZEEXREF R_ZEERF
B=1+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Bank balance RITEBR LIRS
and cash 3,761 1,742
Less: Bank overdraft &, : $R7738 X (Fff#£22)
(Note 22) (396) (2,060)
3,365 (318)
28. Commitments 28. H&iE
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the LEROEE — AEBEAEEA
lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under BERAESATAIEELCERLOHRRK
non-cancellable operating leases for office premises as EEESBBNT -
follows:
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEEXE RNZEZERF
B=1+H MA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Not later than one year —F R 191 267
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29. Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 20 July 2005, the Group disposed of its 100%
interest in Byford Marketing (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“BMM”) to an
independent third party for a consideration of
HK$12,987,000. The Group recorded a gain of
HK$824,000, being the difference between the sales
consideration and the net assets value of BMM
(excluding the liabilities of BMM to be borne by the
Group pursuant to the sale agreement, of
HK$3,579,000) as at 31 May 2005 and after deducting
expenses incurred on the disposal of HK$417,000. At
the time of the disposal, BMM was engaged in the sales
and distribution of men’s innerwear, socks and apparel in

Malaysia.

Details of the net assets disposed, fair value of sales
consideration and the net cash inflow in respect of the

disposal are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R R M =

29 HE—XWEBARZWHE

R_ZBZTREL+A-1+H AEEBER
Byford Marketing (M) Sdn. Bhd.([BMM])
B100%H#m HET—E2BILE=H K
18 & 12,987,0007 7T o A % @ 8% 15 W &
824,000/8 7T - AMHERBEEBMM_EZE
EFFREA=+T—BEEFEGIRAEER
B E B SERED BMM & {&53,579,000
BIT) M ERE - MRS R X 417,0008
T oBMM REERESRKRAEHEZE
MKHE - BERRAHEERDHE -

EEFEE HEREBATEMHEFR
ERAHFBOT ¢

HK$°000
FTET
Plant and equipment 28 N iR

(Note 14) (FFEE14) 167
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE &

(Note 24) (B 7E24) 277
Inventories FE 5,615
Trade receivables g 5 R RIR 5,724
Prepayments, deposits FERFE - ZE2Rk

and other receivables H {h fE W Fk18 218
Total assets BEMRE 12,001
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29. Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued) 20, HE—FRMBARZWE (&)

HK$’000
FET
Trade payables 5 e R 717
Accruals and other FERT B A & E 3R IE
payables 29
Borrowings B 3,088
Total liabilities BEHAE 3,834
Net identifiable assets BEAHANFEE
disposed 8,167
Liabilities to be borne by ~ AEEEAE R E
the Group 3,579
Expenses incurred for LEEECZER
the disposal 417
12,163
Sales proceeds HETEHE 12,987
Gain on disposal of HE—ZRKBARZ WS
a subsidiary 824
Analysis of the net cash LEFHRERADN
inflow in respect of the
disposal:
Net cash proceeds Fri5 338 € K18 9,408
Expenses incurred for HEELEZER
the disposal (417)
Bank overdrafts BERITEX
disposed 2,802
Net cash inflow in LEFHEERA
respect of the disposal 11,793
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30. Related Party Transactions 30. EREALRS
As at 30 April 2006, the Company was 67.4% owned by RZZEZETRNENA=1+H ZBELXES
Pacific Genius Group Limited, a company incorporated in A SZ AR F) Pacific Genius Group
the British Virgin Islands. The directors regard Roly Limited #B AR AI67.4%  EERE
International Holdings Ltd., a company incorporated in RBEREFMRZAMETMEELEZ S
Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of the Singapore BRAAIER EMHE2EBIBRZERERA
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, as being the AIARKEERAR
ultimate holding company.
(a) During the year/period the Group had the following @ FHRN AEBNABEALRS
related party transactions: wm
1 May 1 January
Identity of Nature of 2005 to 2004 to
related parties transactions 30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EEHF —_ZTTmEF
FA—HZE —H—B=%
—EERE —EThHEF
EREALTSH XEHE mMA=+H MAB=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Midway Enterprises Licensing income

(Guang Zhou) Ltd.,
a fellow subsidiary
BN BB A mbsE [EREEEL T PN
BRAA
GEX =G 249 —

Midway Enterprises Purchase
(Guang Zhou) Ltd.,
a fellow subsidiary
BN BB A REE
BRAR]
GEEY 00PN 77 —
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30. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(a)

During the year/period the Group had the following

related party transactions: (Continued)

During the year, the Group disposed two motor
vehicles to a director, Mr. Chai Sing Hong, for sales
proceeds of HK$616,000,
HK$162,000.

resulting in a gain of

Key management compensation

30. EREAETRE (&)

(@)

FOHRA AEENEEEALRS

wmr o (48)

FR
BEEEERLAE
616,000/ T * &% 15
ﬁo

T2ZEBRAB®RM

C AEEERETEHE T
HE RT3 RE
I 25 162,000

1 May 1 January
2005 to 2004 to
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
—EERF —ETNF
EA—RZE —A—HBz
—EBAREF —EThE
mMA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHT
Salaries, bonuses o - TEALROERA
and allowances 1,080 2,321
Pension costs HER NG BN
— defined — ERHE R
contribution
plans 12 13
1,092 2,334
Balances with related companies (c) HBEBMERAES

The amounts due from related companies were

unsecured, non-interest bearing and were

repayable within one year.
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31. Subsidiaries 31. MiIBAF
At At
30 April 2006 30 April 2005
R-ZBEXREF R-ZZEZERF
mMA=+H mMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRG - AR E 1 1
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which AKARIMBRAIZHE ARE2ENE R A
are wholly owned by the Company, as at 30 April 2006 EHR T RNFNA=-+HMNFAERD
were as follows: ™

Place of
incorporation and

Particulars of

issued share

Principal activities and

Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity capital place of operation
o B 32 3 B R 21T
MEARERE EEBERER BRAFE FEEBRKEHH
Byford IGS Limited British Virgin Islands, 1 ordinary share  Non-active
limited liability company of US$1
EEBEXHES 1REEIET EEEE
(BEREERF] 2 E AR
Byford Marketing (S) Singapore, 50,000 ordinary  Sale and distribution of

Pte. Ltd.

D Byford Holdings
Limited

limited liability company

Mg (BREMERAD

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBREXES
(EREMERFAD

shares of

S$10 each
50,000/ & %

T {B 1037 3% 7T
2 E R

14,100 ordinary
shares of
US$0.01 each
14,1000 & i%
E{E0.01% 7T
2 & BB

men’s innerwear, socks

and apparel in Singapore
REFIIRHE R D HBE

RIRAE 4% 5 K2 AR &

Investment holding

BEER
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31.

32.

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

MEARER

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AR At B
EEERER

31. WERA (&)

Particulars of
issued share
capital
217
BRAFFE

Principal activities and
place of operation

ITRXBREEHH

D Byford Limited

Donald Byford & Sons
Limited

Donald Byford & Sons
Pte. Ltd.

Donald Byford & Sons
Sdn. Bhd.

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERLES
(BEREERF)

England and Wales,
limited liability company

SRR B N B R AR
(BEREMERF

Singapore,
limited liability company
MM (EREERR)

Malaysia,
limited liability company

FRAE (EREERR)

1 ordinary share
of US$1
1REBEI1ETZ
=Rl

10 ordinary shares
of £1 each

10 F X E &
1E37 - Fiil s

2 ordinary shares

of S$1 each

2k TR EE

13T N T 2 L m ik

2,440,000 ordinary
shares of RM1 each
2,440,0000% & &
EE1IGE 2 E@mK

Investment holding

BEEK

Trademark agent in
United Kingdom
R B IT R IR AR

Holding of trademarks in
Singapore

SRS ES R NSE

Holding of trademarks in
Malaysia
RERAERRFAER

The shares of D Byford Holdings Limited are held directly
by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are

held indirectly.

A AREEHE A D Byford Holdings Limited

Z B
ﬁo

H Y B A =) A £ Rl 2% P 4 4

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The outstanding amounts with the subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.
Approval of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2006.
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Summary of the Published Results and of the Assets and Liabilities of
the Group for the Last Five Financial Years/Period

AEERBOILEAMBRFE  HPHE2EHBEXEREERABHRE

Results E
Year ended Year ended Year ended 1 January 2004 Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December to 30 April 30 April
2001 2002 2003 2005 2006
= H=E Bz —EEME BZE
—2T-F —TTF —TT=F -A—-RBZ% ZEERF
+ZA=+t—H TZA=+-B +ZA=+—-H ZTTRE mA=+H
ItEE EE ItFE mA=+H LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FiET FET FiET FET TER
Turnover EER 47,057 45,672 51,689 63,147 29,346
Cost of sales HEKA (30,174) (28,087) (25,487) (35,099) (13,808)
Gross profit E7 16,883 17,585 26,202 28,048 15,538
Other income Hipl A 624 617 556 626 555
Selling and distribution HERDHEMA
costs (5,046) (4,815) (5,987) (9,315) (4,893)
General and administrative ~ —f& RITHH
expenses (11,326) (11,084) (11,860) (21,308) (12,075)
Operating profit/(loss) mE R/ (B]R) 1,135 2,303 8,911 (1,949) (875)
Gain on disposal of a HE—ZHE
subsidiary DR WE — — — — 824
Finance costs BEMAK (1,454) (1,547) (990) (975) (385)
(Loss)/profit before BREEEA (BE)
income tax /& (319) 756 7,921 (2,924) (436)
Income tax EH(Ax)
(expense)/credit Vg 1= (470) (363) 151 (36) (164)
(Loss)/profit for the /8RN (BR)/
year/period ikl (789) 393 8,072 (2,960) (600)
Dividend R E — — 2,000 — —
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (EEB) /BF
(HK cents) (B Al)
Basic YN (0.5) 0.3 4.4 (1.5) (0.3)
Diluted #F (0.5) 0.3 4.4 (1.5) (0.3)
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Summary of the Published Results and of the Assets and Liabilities of
the Group for the Last Five Financial Years/Period

AEBRSOAEMBREE BHE2EHBEEREEHLGERE
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 30 April At 30 April
2001 2002 2003 2005 2006
RZZEE—F RZITTZF RZTT=F RZTTHF RIETAE
+-A=+—-R +ZA=+-8 TZA=+-H mA=+H mA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTAET FTiET TAET FTET TERT
Total assets BEBE 40,898 37,604 49,946 42,359 32,353
Total liabilities BEEE (44,895) (35,095) (18,937) (15,008) (4,606)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEZE/ (3,997) 2,509 31,009 27,353 27,747
(BEFEH)
Note: P EE -

The results for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 31 December
2002 which were extracted from the prospectus dated 23 June 2003
issued by the Company have been prepared as if the Company has always
been the holding company of the Group from the beginning of the earliest

period presented, using the pooling of interests method.
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BYFORD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEBRKEAERALQA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RASHBEMALZERDA)

Suites 401-409, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong
BRRRREES15R

e AR E401-409%=

Tel FExE: (852) 2180 2911

Fax fEE: (852) 21802910
www.donaldbyford.com

*For identification purpose only {& {34 3



